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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 23 APRIL 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  unders tand tha t  there  has been 

miscommunica t ion  about  what  t ime we s tar t .   We are  

supposed to  s ta r t  a t  10 :00  but  i t  looks  l i ke  one o f  my s ta f f  

members  sent  the  wrong in fo rmat ion .   So we a re  go ing  to  

ad journ  and s ta r t  a t  11 :00  tha t  w i l l  then g i ve  a lso  the  –  

your  team and Mr  S ingh ’s  team a  chance to  d iscuss any  

issues tha t  may  need to  be  d iscussed so  tha t  when we 10 

s ta r t  a t  11 :00  we can jus t  go  on .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   We wi l l  then ad journ  un t i l  11 :00 .   We 

ad journ .    

REGISTRAR:   A l l  r i se .  

PROCEEDINGS RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  aga in  Mr  Myburgh ,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Good morn ing  DCJ.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing ,  good morn ing .   A re  you 

ready?  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes thank you DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Le t  us  s ta r t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Good morn ing  Mr  S ingh.  
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MR SINGH:   Good morn ing  S i r,  morn ing  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morn ing  Mr  S ingh.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  wou ld  l i ke  jus t  to  go  back to  the  issue  

o f  you r  t rave l .  When you –  when you went  to  Eskom d id  

you cont inue mak ing  these persona l /p r iva te  t r ips  to  Duba i?  

MR SINGH:   I f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Can I  ask  you… 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Sor ry  Cha i rperson I  cannot  hear  

you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You cannot  hear  your  c l ien t  o r  10 

everybody?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   I  cannot  hear  my learned f r iend.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Your  c l ien t .   Oh.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   And I  a lso  need to  hear  h im i t  is  

very  impor tan t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV MYBURGH:   A l r igh t  we l l  le t  me repeat  the  quest ion  

then i f  I  my DCJ?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  had asked you whether  a f te r  you went  

to  Eskom you cont inued w i th  your  persona l /p r i va te  t r ips  to  

Duba i  and I  unders tand you answered yes?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  
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ADV MYBURGH:   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  Bund le  

5(b )  Exh ib i t  BB23.   And cou ld  you tu rn  –  cou ld  you tu rn  to  

page 829 in  fac t  to  828.    

MR SINGH:   I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH:   A re  you there?  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Now th is  i s  a  judgment  o f  the  H igh  Cour t  

in  the  mat te r  be tween Eskom McKinsey and  Tr i l l i an  

e tce te ra  where  Eskom sought  to  over tu rn  the  payments  

made to  Tr i l l i an .   I  jus t  want  to  take  you to  a  few paragraph 10 

o f  th is  judgment  inso far  as  i t  re la tes  to  you.   Cou ld  you 

p lease go to  paragraph 16 –  16  a t  page 835.    

MR SINGH:   I  am there .  

ADV MYBURGH:   A t  the  foo t  o f  page 835 pa ragraph 16  

reads:  

“Once Mr  Mole fe  and Ano j  S ingh ar r i ved a t  

Eskom sen ior  o f f i c ia ls  a t  Eskom who were  

expected to  ac t  i n  good fa i th  and in  the  best  

in te res ts  o f  Eskom s tar ted  to  in te rac t  w i th  

Mr  Essa meet ing  h im a t  h is  of f i ces  in  20 

Mel rose A rch  Johannesburg  feed ing  h im  

wi th  conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion  be long ing  to  

Eskom.   Some o f  these o f f i c ia ls  i n  

par t i cu la r  Mr  Ma tshe la  Koko and  Mr  Ano j  

S ingh en joyed t r ips  to  Duba i  e i the r  pa id  fo r  
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o r  fac i l i ta ted  by  Mr  Essa th rough the  Gupta  

L ink  bus inesses but  these are  then secured  

w i th  the  so le  i n ten t ion  o f  favour ing  o r  

benef i t t ing  Tr i l l i an  i f  no t  f raudu len t  i s  qu i te  

obv ious. ”  

 And then i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  go  to  parag raph 56  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Cha i rperson wou ld  i t  no t  be  

conven ien t  i f  Mr  S ingh answers  the  va r ious po in t s  pu t  to  

h im by my learned f r iend o therwise  i t  becomes a  very  long  

s ta tement  and we  might  have to  repeat  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  Mr  Myburgh might  be  need ing  to  

re fer  h im to  Mr  S ingh to  another  paragraph be fore  he  

makes a  –  pu ts  the  quest ion  he  wants  to  pu t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  jus t  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  pa ragraph?  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  want  to  take  you to  paragraph 56 a t  

page 868 and jus t  cont inues the  theme obv ious ly  Mr  S ingh 

I  am go ing  to  g i ve  you an oppor tun i ty  to  answer  or  to  ra ise  

whatever  you want  to .   A t  56   

“Cor rup t ion  i s  the  on ly  i ssue tha t  Tr i l l i an  20 

seems even though feeb ly  to  pu t  in  i ssue.   

Upon examinat ion  o f  the  und isputed fac ts  i t  

seems tha t  even on th is  aspect  Tr i l l i an  fa i l s  

to  make out  a  case.   One o f  the  events  tha t  

s tand out  in  the  cor rup t ion  co l labora t ion  –  
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sor ry  in  the  cor rup t  co l labora t ion  be tween  

Tr i l l i an  and Eskom of f i c ia ls  was the  a l l  

expenses pa id  t r ips  en joyed by  Eskom 

of f i c ia ls  Koko and Ano j  S ingh to  Duba i  

wh ich  were  ar ranged by  Mr  Essa and  

Sahara  a  Gupta  owned company. : ”  

 Do you want  to  comment  on  those two pa ragraphs? 

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr  Cha i r.   I  th ink  you –  we re fer  

th is  en t i re  … 

ADV MYBURGH:   And you need speak in to  the  m ic .  10 

MR SINGH:   Oh sor ry.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   B r ing  the  m ic  c loser  to  you.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  i f  we re fer  to  the  en t i re  how can I  

say  –  mat te r  be tween Eskom and  McKinsey and Tr i l l i an  Mr  

you w i l l  no te  tha t  I  was not  c i ted  as  a  pa r ty  to  th is  

app l i ca t ion .    

So fo r  me to  comment  on  these mat te rs  wou ld  be  

inappropr ia te  bu t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  Mr  Myburgh to  adv ise  20 

me to  comment  on  parag raph 15 and to  the  ex ten t  tha t  we  

have dea l t  w i th  these mat te rs  yes terday Mr  Cha i r  I  am –  i f  

you  look a t  parag raph 16 Mr  Cha i r  i t  says :  

“Sen ior  Eskom o f f i c ia ls  were  expected to  

have –  00 :06:17 s ta r ted  in te rac ted  w i th  Mr  
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Essa meet ing  h im a t  h is  o f f i ce  a t  Me l rose 

Arch  feed ing  h im wi th  conf ident ia l  

in fo rmat ion  be long ing  to  Eskom.   Some o f  

these o f f i c ia ls  in  par t i cu la r…”  

 So le t  us  dea l  w i th  the  f i rs t  00 :06 :29 Mr  Cha i r.   

F i r s t l y  Mr  Cha i r  I  deny tha t  I  met  Mr  Essa a t  Me l rose  

o f f i ces .   There  was no –  the re  is  no  ev idence suggest ing  

tha t  Mr  Essa and  I  met  a t  h is  Mel rose Arch  o f f i ces  wh i le  he  

was a  shareho lde r  o f  Tr i l l i an .   

 Second ly  Mr  Cha i r  in  te rms o f  feed ing  conf ident ia l  10 

in fo rmat ion  about  Eskom aga in  Mr  Cha i r  I  deny tha t  I  fed  

any conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion  to  Mr  Essa because aga in  

there  i s  no  proof  to  suppor t  tha t .  

 In  te rms o f  the  t r ips  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  we have dea l t  

w i th  tha t  yes terday and I  have den ied  the  invo l vement  o f  

Mr  Essa or  the  Gupta  –  the  Gupta  l inked ent i t ies  re la t ing  to  

these t r ips  tha t  he  has ment ioned in  parag raph 16.  

 I f  we then go to  paragraph 56 Mr  Cha i r  we dea l  

aga in  w i th  the  issue o f  the  cor rup t  co l labo ra t ion  be tween 

Tr i l l i an  and Eskom of f i c ia ls  Mr  Cha i r.  20 

 Aga in  Mr  Cha i r  I  deny any a l lega t ion  o f  cor rup t ion  

aga ins t  me.   I  have dea l t  w i t h  the  issue o f  Tr i l l i an  

ex tens i ve l y  in  the  Eskom s t ream and aga in  Mr  Cha i r  in  

te rms o f  the  t r ips  I  deny any assoc ia t ion  w i th  Mr  Essa or  

Sahara  Group o f  Companies re la t ing  to  these t r i ps  as  we 
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have dea l t  w i th  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l r igh t  and then i f  I  can  take… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry  Mr  Myburgh.   Do we by  any chance  

have a  se t  o f  the  cour t  papers  re la t ing  to  th i s  judgment?  

Do you know? 

ADV MYBURGH:   I  am sure  we can  obta in  them DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  –  to  see the  se t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  ja .   Wel l  Mr  S ingh a f te r  the  –  th is  

app l i ca t ion  had  been launched  wh ich  resu l ted  in  th is  10 

judgment  were  you –  d id  you become aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  

an  app l i ca t ion  had been launched a t  the  H igh  Cour t  by  

Eskom aga ins t  Tr i l l i an  among o thers?   D id  you become 

aware  o f  the  app l i ca t ion  pend ing  i n  the  H igh  Cour t  be fore  

the  judgment?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  a t  the  t ime I  do  no t  reca l l  bu t  I  wou ld  

th ink  th rough the  med ia  I  d id  become aware .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Yes.   Nobody sent  you the  papers  

or  anyth ing?  

MR SINGH:   No S i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Thank you.   And then a t  parag raph 57  

Tr i l l i an  c la ims:  

“That  even assuming the  cor rec tness o f  

these a l legat ions  they do  not  ass i s t  Eskom.   
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In  essence the  a l legat ions concern ing  

Messrs  Koko and  S ingh do not  demonst ra te  

a  cause or  nexus between the i r  a l leged  

rece ip t  o f  g ra t i f i ca t ion  and the  conc lus ion  o f  

any agreement  w i th  McK insey or  the  

appo in tment  o f  McK insey o r  indeed Tr i l l i an  

and sub-cont rac tors . ”  

 What  Tr i l l i an  s ta tes  in  th is  exe r t  i s  fa r  removed f rom 

the  t ru th  as  the  fo l low ing fac ts  demonst ra te .   I f  you  go over  

the  page.  10 

“As Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  S ingh  was the  

s ignatory  to  the  board  tender  commi t tee  

submiss ion  on  8  August  2016 wh ich  

mot iva ted  the  R1.8  b i l l i on  se t t lement  

inc lus ive  o f  payment  to  BBBEE par tner  

wh ich  par tner  i s  no t  ident i f ied .  

2 .  Tr i l l i an  sent  invo i ces d i rec t l y  to  S ingh as  

what  appeared  to  be  Tr i l l i an ’s  contac t  

person a t  Eskom.  

3 .  The board  tender  commi t tee ’s  December  20 

2016 reso lu t ion  appo in ted  S ingh,  Koko and 

Mabe lane to  negot ia te  –  Mabe lane I  beg  

your  pardon –  to  negot ia te  the  f ina l  

se t t lement  wh ich  inc luded payments  to  the  

BBBEE par tne r.  
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4 .  On 6  Ju ly  2015 Koko was tasked to  

conduct  negot ia t ions  as  Group Execut ive  

Techno logy and  Commerc ia l  to  conduct  

negot ia t ions  o f  the  MSA.  

5 .  Koko and S ingh sought  approva l  o f  the  

2015 McKinsey cont rac t  f rom the  Eskom 

board .   

Ev ident ly  the re  i s  a  cons is ten t  

pa t te rn  in  the  behav iour  o f  these sen ior  

o f f i c ia ls  wh ich  a t  the  end o f  the  day 10 

benef i t ted  Tr i l l i an .    

Another  theme in  the  conduct  o f  

these o f f i c ia l s  was tha t  whenever  invo ices  

landed a t  Eskom’s  desk they were  se t t led  

w i th  a lacr i t y  and w i th  a  to ta l  and unsee ing ly  

d is regard  fo r  Eskom’s  in te rna l  p rescr ip ts  

regard ing  payment  approva ls .  

The ob jec t i ve  ev idence presented by  

Eskom demonst ra tes  tha t  jus t  a  nexus  

between Eskom and Tr i l l i an ’s  benefac t ion  20 

but  seeks –  speaks to  a  theme o f  

cons i s ten t ly  cor rup t  behav iou r. ”  

Perhaps I  shou ld  jus t  read the  las t  sentence aga in .  

“The ob jec t i ve  ev idence presented by  

Eskom demonst ra tes  more  than tha t  jus t  a  



23 APRIL 2021 – DAY 381 
 

Page 12 of 92 
 

nexus between  Eskom and  Tr i l l i an ’s  

benefac t ion  bu t  speaks to  a  theme o f  

cons i s ten t ly  cor rup t  behav iou r. ”  

You want  to  comment  upon tha t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  aga in  in  te rms o f  the  ob jec t i ve  

ev idence tha t  i s  p resented by  Eskom demonst ra tes…sorry  

S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You –  I  th ink  you must  pu t  your  f i l e  on 

top  because when you speak look ing  down.  

MR SINGH:   Le t  me do th is .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   When you speak look ing  down we 

cannot  hear  you proper ly.   Yes.   Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  in  te rms o f  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  p robab ly  

the  las t  sentence.   In  te rms o f  the  ob jec t i ve  ev idence 

presented by  Eskom Mr  Cha i r  aga in  re i te ra te  I  was not  

par t y  to  th is  app l i ca t ion  so  I  am not  p r ivy  to  the  ev idence 

tha t  was ac tua l l y  p resented by  Eskom to  demonst ra te  the  

issue o f  –  tha t  speaks to  the  theme o f  cons i s ten t l y  cor rup t  

behav iou r.  

 On whose par t  I  am ext remely  –  I  do  no t  know who 20 

tha t  –  whose pa r t  i t  i s .   Mr  Cha i r  i f  we look a t  the  –  the  

parag raph 57.1 ,  57 .2 ,  57 .3 ,  57 ,4  and 57,5  and we w i l l  take  

them in  tu rn .    

 Mr  Cha i r  i f  we can s tar t  w i th  57 .5  i t  says :  

“Koko and S ingh sought  approva l  o f  the  
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2015 McKinsey cont rac t  f rom the  Eskom 

board . ”  

 Mr  Cha i r  as  I  have –  as  we have d iscussed in  

Eskom’s  s t ream dates  become very  impor tan t  in  these type 

o f  mat te rs  and I  do  no t  reca l l  hav ing  ar r i ved on the  1s t  o f  

August  2015 where  I  sought  approva l  fo r  the  McK insey 

cont rac t .  

 I f  I  reca l l  the  McK insey cont rac t  was a  conf inement  

to  McK insey he was approved in  Ju ly  2015 by  i f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y  tha t  was  pr io r  to  my ar r i va l .  10 

 So tha t  i s  as  i t  re la tes  to  57 .5 .   And here  aga in  on  

57.4  Mr  Cha i r  wh ich  conf i rms.  

“On 6  Ju l y  Koko  was tasked w i th  the  –  to  

conduct  negot ia t ions  as  the  Group  

Execut ive  Techno logy and Commerc ia l  to  

conduct  negot ia t i ons  on  the  MSA. ”  

 Which  aga in  suggests  tha t  i t  i s  p re -dated to  my 

ar r i va l  o f  1  August .   I f  we look a t  the  board  tender  

commiss ion  –  the  board  tender  commi t tee  in  December  Mr  

Cha i r  I  th ink  tha t  was –  I  do  no t  th ink  there  is  a  d ispute  in  20 

te rms o f  the  57 .3 .  

 Mr  Cha i r  I  do  no t  know what  leve l  o f  de ta i l  you  wan t  

me to  go  in to re la t ing  to  these mat te rs  because obv ious ly  

th is  i s  no t  an  –  th is  i s  no t  an  Eskom s t ream but  fo r  me to  –  

to  fu l l y  –  fo r  you  to  fu l l y  apprec ia te  the  comment  in  te rms  
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o f  the  board  tender  commi t tee  2016 reso lu t ion  appo in ted  

S ingh,  Koko and Mabe lane to  negot ia te  the  se t t lement  

agreement  I  wou ld  have to  go  in  a re la t i ve  amount  o f  de ta i l  

fo r  you to  apprec ia te  the  contex t  beh ind  th is  reso lu t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  –  I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  w i th in  

the  –  w i th in  the  contex t  o f  Mr  Myburgh ’s  quest ion  tha t  you  

g ive  me enough tha t  you th ink  g i ves  you a  fa i r  o r  –  a  fa i r  

oppor tun i ty  you know to  dea l  w i th  Eskom.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  can we do… 

CHAIRPERSON:   And obv ious l y  –  obv ious ly  the re  is  the  10 

Eskom work  s t ream … 

MR SINGH:   I  was jus t  go ing  to  suggest  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  I  do  no t  want  a  s i tua t ion  where  

the  quest ion  m ight  requ i re  you to  dea l  a  l i t t le  more  fu l l y  

w i th  the  issue and you do not  dea l  more  fu l l y  w i th  i t  to  your  

de t r iment .   So… 

MR SINGH:   Wel l  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  maybe… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  wou ld  l i ke  you  to  –  to  be  ab le  to  say 

th is  i s  the  th rus t  o f  my answer  o r  th is  i s  my answer.  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r  w i th  the  unders tand ing  tha t  20 

we s t i l l  go ing  to  t raverse  these issues in  the  Eskom s t ream 

I  w i l l  p rov ide  you w i th  the  contex t  and the  background  

beh ind  57.3  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  I  th ink  i t  i s  necessary  here  

w i th  the  unders tand ing  tha t  w i l l  more  fu l l y  cover  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  because Mr  Myburgh is  the  ev idence  
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leader  sub jec t  to  what  he  says  because he might  be  

want ing  a  fu l l  answer  on  cer ta in  mat te rs ;  he  m ight  be  

want ing  no t  so  de ta i led  an  answer  on  cer ta in  mat te rs .   Mr  

Myburgh what  i s  our  input?  

ADV MYBURGH:   Cha i rpe rson I  have no d i f f i cu l t y  w i th  Mr  

S ingh.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH:   P rov id ing  whatever  exp lanat ion  he  

w ishes to  g ive  a t  th is  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Ja  okay a l r i gh t .   So … 10 

MR SINGH:   Thank you Mr.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  so  sa t is f y  yourse l f  tha t  you have g iven 

a  fa i r  –  you have g iven an answer  tha t  reasonab ly  sa t is f ies  

you tha t  you have  answered the  quest ion .  

MR SINGH:   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   So  le t  us  come back to  57 .3 .   So we have 

dea l t  w i th  57 .5 ;  we have dea l t  w i th  57 .4  Mr  Cha i r  57 .2 .  

“Tr i l l i an  sent  invo ices d i rec t l y  to  S ingh as  

what  appeared  to  be  Tr i l l i an ’s  contac t  20 

person a t  Eskom. ”    

 Mr  Cha i r  57 .2  as  I  reca l l  in  te rms  o f  the  ev idence  

tha t  we p resented on the  Eskom s t ream okay.   The –  i f  

memory  serves me co r rec t ly  the  on ly  invo i ce  tha t  was  

ac tua l l y  sent  to  me d i rec t l y  was the  invo ice  fo r  the  
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corpo ra te  p lan  tha t  re la ted  to  the  R30 mi l l ion  payment .   I  

do  no t  reca l l  i f  any  o f  the  MSA invo ices were  ac tua l l y  sent  

to  me.   And Mr  Cha i r  aga in  the  issue o f  S ingh appears  to  

be  Tr i l l i an ’s  con tac t  person a t  Eskom I  th ink  we have 

exp la ined and t raversed aga in  in  the  Eskom s t ream.    

Any connota t ion  as  i t  re la tes  to  me be ing  Tr i l l i an ’s  

contac t  person in  a  –  how can I  say  –  unsavoury  manner  I  

th ink  we re jec t  because we have exp la ined tha t  the  invo i ce  

re la t ing  to  corpora te  p lan  was sen t  to  me d i rec t l y  because  

I  was a  rec ip ien t  o f  those S i r.    10 

And as  I  say  Mr  Cha i r  aga in  th is  i s  f rom memory.   In  

te rms o f  the  57 .1  S ingh was a  s ignato ry  to  the  board  

tender  commi t tee  submiss ions  on  8 t h  Augus t  wh ich  

mot iva ted  fo r  R1.8  b i l l i on  se t t lement  inc lus i ve  o f  the  

BBBEE par tne r  wh ich  was not  iden t i f ied .    

Mr  Cha i r  fac tua l l y  tha t  i s  no t  d isputed.   I  d id  s ign  

the  memo I  d id  recommend the  memo and Mr  Cha i r  the  

recommendat ion  o f  the  memo was on the  bas is  tha t  the  

board  tender  commi t tee  had the  mandate  to  e i ther  approve  

or  d isapprove.    20 

I  d id  no t  ho ld  the  mandate  because you w i l l  reca l l  

tha t  p r io r  to  the  8 t h  o f  August  2016 I  th ink  somet ime in  

June 2016 the  board  tender  commi t tee  had a l ready taken a  

reso lu t ion  to  te rm inate  the  board  –  the  Master  Serv i ces  

Agreement  w i th  McK insey and i t s  sub-cont rac to rs .  And tha t  
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reso lu t ion  empowered a  se t t lement  p rocess to  be  engaged 

upon fo l low ing the  28 t h  June le t te r  f rom McKinsey le t  us 

ca l l  i t  le t te r  o f  demand.    

So Mr  Cha i r  aga in  in  contex t  I  d id  no t  approve a  

R1.8  b i l l i on  se t t lement .   The document  was p repared based 

on a  request  f rom the  board  tender  commi t tee  tha t  

emanated in  June v isa  v ie  the  se t t lement  and the  

te rm inat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was th i s  –  was the  submiss ion  o f  the  8 t h  

o f  August  2016 he d id  no t  recommend the  approva l?  10 

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  i t  was a  recommendat ion  fo r  them to  

cons ider  the  se t t lement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   So yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes bu t  i t  mot iva ted  fo r  the  approva l?  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   Bu t  the  ac tua l  approva l  ac tua l l y  sa t  w i th  the  

board  tender  commi t tee  themse lves.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  the  – to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you want  20 

to  make the  d is t i nc t ion  a t  a  fac tua l  leve l  tha t  you  d id  no t  

approve.  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Even though you  may have recommended 

in  suppor t  o f  the  approva l .  



23 APRIL 2021 – DAY 381 
 

Page 18 of 92 
 

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  a  fa i r  po in t .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  in  te rms o f  –  so  then go ing  back to  

57 .3  Mr  Cha i r  because I  am t ry ing  to  dea l  w i th  i t  in  

chrono log ica l  o rde r.   The board  tender  commi t tee  in  

December  2016  reso lu t ion  appo in ted  S ingh,  Koko and  

Mabe lane to  negot ia te  a  f ina l  se t t lement  w i th  –  i nc luded  

the  payments  fo r  the  pa r tne r.   And  she says subsequent  to  10 

the  approva l  o f  the  8 t h  o f  August  a  1 .8  the  board  tender  

commi t tee  I  th ink  a t  tha t  po in t  approved the  payment  o f  

R800 mi l l ion  o f  the  R1.8  bu t  the re  was cont inuous  – there  

was s t i l l  a  se t t lement  p rocess tha t  was –  tha t  was s t i l l  on-

go ing  because the  eventua l  amount  tha t  was ac tua l l y  

se t t led  on  was an  amount  o f  R1.6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Was an amount  o f?  

MR SINGH:   R1.6  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR SINGH:   And  the  se t t lement  agreement  Mr  Cha i r  was  20 

u l t imate ly  s igned between Eskom and McKinsey in  

February  2017.   So tha t  i s  the  contex t  beh ind  the  

December  2016 reso lu t ion  o f  the  board  tender  commi t tee .   

In  th is  on-go ing  negot ia t ion  process they then requested 

tha t  myse l f ,  Mr  Koko and Mr  Mabe lane engage w i th  
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McK insey to  f ind  a  lower  va lue  than the  R1.8  tha t  they had  

or ig ina l l y  –  tha t  they had or ig ina l l y  approved and a t  tha t  

t ime Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  th i s  co inc ided w i th  the  independent  

rev iew tha t  had been done by  O l i ver  Wyman and tha t  was 

the  bas is  fo r  le t  us  ask  fo r  a  lower  amount .   Okay.    

Mr  Cha i r  aga in  in  te rms o f  th is  the  reso lu t ion  

appo in ted  us  to  do  th is  we engaged w i th  them,  we  nego –  

we engaged w i th  McK insey –  when I  say  we I  th ink  i t  was 

pr imar i l y  Mr  Govender  and Mr  Mabe lane tha t  used then the  

O l ive r  Wyman repor t  to  se t t le  –  to  a r r i ve  a t  a  se t t lement  10 

va lue  o f  R1.6  b i l l i on  wh ich  was then  I  th ink  taken  to  the  

board  tender  commi t tee  in  February  and then was se t t led  

upon approva l  by  the  board  tender  commi t tee  wh ich  then  

resu l ted  in  Mr  Mabe lane s ign ing  the  f ina l  se t t lement  

agreement  w i th  McK insey wh ich  then a f fec ted  the  las t  

payment  o f  R1.6 .    

Mr  Cha i r  i f  we then go on to  the  po in t  o f  ev ident ly  

there  is  a  cons is ten t  pa t te rn  o f  behav iour  o f  these sen ior  

o f f i c ia ls  wh ich  a t  the  end o f  the  day benef i t ted  Tr i l l i an .    

Mr  Cha i r  I  deny any benef i t  –  any  favour i t i sm tha t  I  20 

had showed toward  Tr i l l i an  or  McK insey fo r  tha t  mat te r.   As  

I  unders tand i t  Mr  Cha i r  the  negot ia t ions  tha t  were  

under taken between Mabe lane and Mr  Govender  in  te rms 

o f  the  se t t lement  p rocess was ac tua l l y  done w i th  McK insey.   

Another  theme o f  conduct  o f  these o f f i c ia ls  was tha t  
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whenever  invo i ces landed a t  the  Eskom desk they were  

se t t led  w i th  a lacr i t y  and w i th  a  to ta l  and unseeming ly  

d is regard  fo r  Eskom’s  in te rna l  p rescr ip ts  regard ing  

payment  approva l .   

Mr  Cha i r  aga in  on  the  Eskom s t ream we went  in to  a  

leve l  o f  de ta i l  and we have  a lso  p rov ided  in  our  

supp lementary  a f f idav i t s  to  the  commiss ion  the  ro les  and  

respons ib i l i t i es  o f  who approves –  approves payments ;  how 

payments  a re  approved;  who the  o f f i c ia ls  a re  tha t  ac tua l l y  

checks invo ices and the  l i ke .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry  has tha t  document  been  

prov ided because you remember  in  the  Eskom s t ream I  

th ink  I  d id  ment ion  tha t  Mr  Se leka and h is  team shou ld  t ry  

and obta in  the  document  tha t  se ts  those th ings  ou t  a t  

Eskom.  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  jus t  fo r  c la r i t y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Opera t ing  p rocedures o r  po l i c ies  ja .  

MR SINGH:   Yes.   So we –  i f  you  reca l l  Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  i t  

was on the  las t  day tha t  we came fo r  the  Eskom s t ream 

prev ious l y  where  we put  up  a  supp lementary  a f f idav i t  and i t  20 

was re la t i ve ly  vo luminous.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  oh  we l l… 

MR SINGH:   And  we wanted to  s ta r t  w i th  tha t  and  then i t  

was dec ided tha t  l i s ten  we w i l l  con t inue w i th  Mr  Se leka ’s  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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MR SINGH:   And we w i l l  come back to  –   

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh I  th ink  I  … 

MR SINGH:   So  tha t  –  so  those th ings are  in  tha t  bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR SINGH:   So  we w i l l  ce r ta in l y  come back to  tha t  Mr  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay so  I  have not  seen them.   I  th ink  I  

( ta lk ing  over  one another ) .  

MR SINGH:   So  the  commiss ion  has no t  ac tua l l y  seen  

them.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  okay.  

MR SINGH:   Bu t  the  documenta t ion  is  w i th… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  there .  

MR SINGH:   In  the  possess ion  o f  the  –  as  par t  o f  one o f  

our  supp lementary  a f f idav i t s .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Okay.   

MR SINGH:   So  Mr  Cha i r  aga in  i f  we look a t  the  word ing  o f  

th is  i t  says   

“The conduct  o f  these o f f i c ia l s ”  

And I  can on ly  assume tha t  they are  re fer r ing  to  20 

myse l f  and Mr  Koko.   Mr  Cha i r  these invo ices tha t  the  re fer  

to  on  the  MSA tha t  was approved and pa id  I  cer ta in ly  d id  

no t  p lay  any ro le  in  the  manner   in  wh ich  they were  

approved –  in  the  manner  in  wh ich  they were  processed in  

the  sys tem for  them to  be  pa id .    
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And aga in  there  is  no  ev idence to  suggest  tha t  I  

was the  one tha t  engaged in  the  payment  o f  these  

invo ices.  I  th ink  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  i s  a l l  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  say in  

te rms o f  th is  paragraph.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH:   Excuse me thank you.   Before  I  go  on  

fu r ther  in to  the  j udgment  cou ld  I  ask  you jus t  to  go  back 

p lease to  page 856.   There  the  Judge quotes  f rom an 

ex t rac t  f rom Eskom’s  a f f idav i t  47 .2  

“Eskom expands on the  co r rup t  l ink  10 

be tween Tr i l l i an ,  Essa and the  Gupta  fami ly  

when i t  says  quo te  as  I  have men t ioned Mr  

Essa was the  major i t y  shareho lder  and a  

d i rec tor  o f  Tr i l l i an  Cap i ta l  Par tners .   I  

a t tach  Mr  Essa ’s  b iog raphy as  we l l  as  

re levant  ex t rac ts  f rom a  P IPC d i rec tor  

search  as  annexure  PH14 and PH15.   Mr  

Essa is  w ide ly  known to  be  a  c lose  

assoc ia te  o f  the  Gupta  fami ly.   Annexure  

PH15 re f lec t s  Mr  Essa ’s  ro le  as  a  d i rec tor  20 

o f  VR Laser  another  company w i th  c lose  

l inks  to  the  Gupta  fami ly.  Mr  Koko  has a lso  

admi t ted  tha t  he  a t tended pr i va te  meet ings  

w i th  Mr  Essa regard ing  Tr i l l i an ’s  work  a t  

Eskom.   In  th is  regard  I  a t tach  re levant  
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ex t rac ts  o f  Mr  Koko ’s  tes t imony in  

Par l iament  as  Annexure  PH16. ”  

 Do you want  to  –  do  you have  any comment  on  

tha t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  none o f  these issues in  th is  

parag raph 47.2  a re  w i th in  my pe rsona l  knowledge.  

ADV MYBURGH:   A re  you suggest ing  tha t  you d id  no t  know 

tha t  Mr  Essa was  a  shareho lder  and d i rec tor  o f  Tr i l l i an?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  when the  –  I  th ink  I  have tes t i f ied  to  

th is  on  the  Eskom s t ream Mr  Cha i r  no t  un t i l  McK insey had 10 

g iven us  the  te rm inat ion  le t te r  re la t ing  to  the i r  re la t ionsh ip  

w i th  McK insey –  or  Tr i l l i an  sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH:   So  you came to  learn  –  sor ry  whose  

te rm inat ion  le t te r?  

MR SINGH:   There  was a  p rocess tha t  –  o f  ve t t ing  tha t  

Tr i l l i an  was under tak ing  –  McK insey was under tak ing  on 

Tr i l l i an .  

ADV MYBURGH:   A l r igh t .   So you on ly  came to  learn  o f  

th is  r igh t  a t  the  end?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t .  20 

ADV MYBURGH:   D id  you not  have any dea l ings w i th  Mr  

Essa in  re la t ion  to  Tr i l l i an?  

MR SINGH:   So S i r.  

ADV MYBURGH:   I  see .   And then le t  us  go  to  the 

conc lus ion .   Paragraph 67 a t  page 875.    
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“ In  the  p resent  mat te r  where  the  

probab i l i t ies  a re  apparent . ”  

MR SINGH:   Sor ry  –  what  –  so r ry  S i r  what  page is  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH:   875 paragraph 67.  

MR SINGH:   875 –  875?  

ADV MYBURGH:   875.   I  th ink  you  appear  to  be  in  a  –  are  

you in  the  r igh t  f i le?  

MR SINGH:   No,  no  yes S i r.   I t  i s  the  same one.  

ADV MYBURGH:   Yes i t  i s .  

MR SINGH:   Ja .   I  am there  S i r.  10 

ADV MYBURGH:   Parag raph 67.  

“ In  the  p resent  mat te r  where  the  

probab i l i t ies  a re  apparent  tha t  sen ior  

o f f i c ia ls  o f  Eskom wou ld  leave no s tone 

unturned to  benef i t  Tr i l l i an  where  

conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion  be long ing  to  Eskom 

was leaked to  Tr i l l i an  where  sen io r  

personne l  o f  Eskom who were  expected to  

d isp lay  the  conduct  o f  the  u tmost  good fa i th  

and to  ac t  in  the  best  in te res ts  o f  Eskom 20 

where  there  appears  to  be  a  cor rup t  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween Eskom’s  sen ior  

personne l  and the  d i rec tors  o f  Tr i l l i an  

jus t i ce  and equ i ty  demand noth ing  less  than 

tha t  the  mon ies  pa id  to  Tr i l l i an  un jus t i f iab ly  
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be  re tu rned to  Eskom. ”  

 Any comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH:   Mr  Cha i r  aga in  i f  we look a t  the  paragraph in  

tu rn  Mr  Cha i r  I  do  no t  know who the  o f f i c ia ls  tha t  they re fer  

to  in  te rms o f  leav ing  no  un s tone –  no  s tone unturned to  

benef i t  Tr i l l i an  I  deny tha t  was me Mr  Cha i r.   As  I  have 

exp la ined to  you  before  Mr  Cha i r.   The ent i re  p rocess 

re la t ing  to  the  se t t lement  Mr  Cha i r  was re la t ing  to  

negot ia t ions  w i th  McK insey themse lves.   The –  where  

conf ident ia l  in fo rmat ion  be long ing  to  Eskom was leader  to  10 

Tr i l l i an  Mr  Cha i r  I  deny tha t  was me in  any way,  shape or  

fo rm.   Personne l  a t  Eskom were  expect ing  to  d i sp lay  a  

conduct  o f  u tmos t  good fa i th  th rough –  and ac t  in  the  best  

in te res t  o f  Eskom.    

 Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  a t  a l l  re levant  t imes,  I  – 

persona l ly,  I  was conduct  –  I  conducted myse l f  in  tha t  

regard .   When the  issues re la t ing  to  the  MSA became 

apparent ,  as  I  tes t i f ied  in  te rms  o f  the  reasons  fo r  the  

te rm inat ion  o f  the  MSA,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  was ac t ing  in  the 

best  in te res t  o f  Eskom.    20 

 When tha t  te rm inat ion  dec is ion  was made by  the  

S teer  Co,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  requested tha t  Lega l  and the  

Procurement  Depar tment  ge t  engaged to  ensure  tha t  the  

te rm inat ion  process is  hand led  in  a  manner  tha t  i s  in  

compl iance w i th  o r  ident i f ied  r isks  assoc ia ted  w i th  the  
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te rm inat ion  process,  I  m i t iga ted  them appropr ia te ly.    

 Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  the  negot ia t ions  or  f ina l  

negot ia t ions ,  Cha i r,  we d id  ob ta in  a  f ina l  independent  

assessment  tha t  was conducted  by  Ova l (? )  1 (? )  wh ich  

ind ica te  a  cer ta in  va lue  wh ich  was  negot ia ted  by  McK insey 

and was se t t led .   Aga in  Mr  Cha i r,  ac t ing  in  the  in te res t  o f  

Eskom.    

 Las t ly  Mr  Cha i r,  a t  a l l  re levant  t imes  Mr  Cha i r  I  

was –  even to  unders tand tha t  the  lega l  rev iew and lega l  

p rocesses o r  lega l  rev iew o f  th is  McK insey cont rac t  was  10 

be ing  under taken  and the re  were  no  issues re la t ing  to  a  

se t t lement .    

 And aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r.   Jus t  f rom my perspect ive  

o f  the  sake o f  c la r i t y.   Aga in ,  the  lega l  assessment  and 

lega l  aspects  re la t ing  to  th is  fa l l s  ou ts ide  o f  purv iew o f  the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  CEO.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then i f  we go,  f ina l l y,  to  the  

orde r.   I t  s ta r ts  a t  parag raph 70  a t  page 876 and I  jus t  

want  to  d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion  to  page 878 fo l low ing on the  

parag raph tha t  I  have read.   There  were  two orders  tha t  I  20 

jus t  want  to  pu t  to  you or  ask  –  br i ng  to  your  a t ten t i on .  

17 .6 :  

“The payments  made by  Eskom to  Tr i l l i an  

ar is ing  f rom the  impugn dec is ions above,  were  

dec la red un lawfu l  and inva l id . ”  
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And 17.7 :  

“Tr i l l i an  i s  o rdered to  repay to  Eskom the  sum 

o f  R 595 228 913 29 togethe r  w i th  in te res t  

thereon a t  the  p rescr ibed ra te ,  ca l cu la ted  f rom 

the  date  o f  judgment . . . ”  

 I  do  no t  suppose  you have anyth ing  to  say?  Do 

you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    No,  Cha i r  I  do  no t  have any comments .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  S ingh,  as  I  read paragraph 67 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

MR SINGH :    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    . . .o f  th is  judgment .   You were  found,  

in  e f fec t ,  to  have been in  a  cor rup t  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  

Mr  Essa.  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  wh ich  page are  you on now? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    67 .  

MR SINGH :    867? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  876,  paragraph 67.  

MR SINGH :    Oh . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    When you read tha t  parag raph in  the  20 

contex t  o f  the  judgment ,  in  e f fec t ,  you have found  to  have  

been in  a  cor rup t  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Essa.  

MR SINGH :    876? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 875,  parag raph 67.  
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MR SINGH :    Yes.   Mr  Cha i r,  as  I  have exp la ined p rev ious l y  

f rom one o f  the  o ther  paragraphs,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  deny the  fac t  

tha t  I  have a  cor rup t  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Essa.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  bu t  what  I  am put t ing  to  you is  

my in te rpre ta t ion  o f  tha t  paragraph is  tha t  you were  found  

to  have been in  a  co r rup t  re la t ionsh ip  w i th  Mr  Essa 

because the  d i rec tors  o f  Tr i l l i an  re fer red  to  a re  Essa and 

the  sen ior  o f f i c ia ls  o f  Eskom tha t  a re  re fe r red  to  a re  you 

and Mr  Koko.  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  then the  f ind ing  o f  the  cour t ,  10 

obv ious ly,  occur red  w i thout  my input  because I  was not  

c i ted  as  a  pa r ty  to  th is  app l i ca t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you accept  tha t  the  in te rpre ta t ion  o f  

the  pa ragraph but  you say tha t  the  f ind ing  was made 

wi thout  you r  inpu t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Now,  wh i ls t  on  the  issue o f  

Mr  Essa.   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  on  the  f i rs t  occas ion  tha t  you 

gave ev idence,  I  took  you to  par t s  o f  Mr  Bester ’s  a f f idav i t .   20 

We are  s t i l l  go ing  to  come back to  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And he sa id  tha t  he  met  w i th  you and  

Mr  Essa a t  Me l rose Arch  a t  a  res taurant  there  in  

approx imate l y  Apr i l  2014 and you,  as  I  reca l l ,  you  den ied  
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tha t .   Cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And as  I  unders tand  i t ,  your  

ev idence befo re  t he  Commiss ion ,  and you must  cor rec t  me 

i f  I  am wrong,  i s  tha t  you on ly  ever  met  Mr  Essa tw ice .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  so .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you met  h im in  the  contex t  o f  

h im want ing  to  meet  you to  exp lore  po tent ia l  bus iness  

oppor tun i t ies  and  I  am ta lk ing  about  Transnet .   You say 

tha t  those meet ings m ight  have happened a t  Me l rose Arch  10 

but  tha t  was the  sum- to ta l  o f  your  meet ings w i th  Mr  Essa.   

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And as  I  unders tand i t .   You now in  

ev idence content  tha t  bo th  was when you were  a t  Transnet  

and Eskom.  

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You sa id  when you were  a t  Eskom,  

you had no need to  work  w i th  Mr  Essa.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .    20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  your  tes t imony before  th is  

Commiss ion  is .   You have met  th is  man on ly  tw ice?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In fo rmal ly,  ou ts ide  o f  Transnet?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .    
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    So tha t  then br ings me to  someth ing  

tha t  I  d id  no t  ask  you the  las t  t ime and tha t  i s  the  

tes t imony o f  Mr  Gama.   And you have been prov ided w i th  

the  re levant  ex t rac t  o f  h is  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    May I  in te r rup t  you Mr  Myburgh?  P lease  

do not  fo rge t  you r  quest ion  because I  do  no t  want  to  fo rge t  

ge t t ing  th is  c la r i f i ca t ion  f rom Mr  S ingh.   I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  th is  wou ld  have fa l len  under  the  Transnet  –  i t  may 

have fa l len  under  the  Transnet  work  s t ream.   D id  you deny 

hav ing  par t  –  hav ing  been pa r t  o r  hav ing  a t tended the  10 

meet ing  tha t  Mr  Henk Bester  tes t i f ied  about ,  where  he  

sa id ,  i f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y,  you were  there  and Mr  Sa l im Essa  

was there  and he  was there .    

 One,  I  th ink  he  tes t i f ied  about  two meet ings 

wh ich  he  had wh ich  invo lved Mr  Essa but  I  th ink  in  one o f  

them he sa id  you  were  there  bu t  most  o f  the  t ime i t  was Mr  

Sa l im Essa who was do ing  the  ta lk ing .   But  I  th ink  in  the  

o ther  one he d id  no t  inc lude you .   D id  you deny  hav ing  

been par t  o f  any meet ing  in  wh ich  Mr  Sa l im Essa was 

present  as  we l l  as  Mr  Henk Bester?  20 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  fo r  contex t ,  I  th ink 

Mr  Myburgh a t  tha t  t ime had s tar ted  lead ing  th is  ev idence 

re la t ing  to  th is  meet ing  and I  th ink  we then got  in to  the 

f i rs t  b i t  o f  the  de ta i l s  o f  the  meet ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR SINGH :    . . .wh ich  I  then den ied  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . .be ing  p resent  a t  tha t  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    And then I  go t  in to  the  reasons as  to  why the  

meet ing  was potent ia l l y  –  how can I  ca l l  i t  –  as  to  why I  

deny the  meet ing  eve r  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    And I  th ink  a t  tha t  po in t  in  t ime,  we then 

ad journed fo r  the  day.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    

MR SINGH :    So  I  th ink  we never  comple te l y  t raversed the  

reasons . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    . . .as  to  why I  had my  den ia l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  I  d id  deny i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .  

MR SINGH :    [ Ind is t inc t ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Wi th  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and I  was wonder ing  whether  when he 

says he  met  Mr  Sa l im tw ice ,  whe ther  tha t  cou ld  be  one o f  

the  two t imes and  tha t  i s  why I  wan ted to  doub le-check.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  i t  was  not .   You are  r i gh t .   You 
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den ied  th is .   And pe rhaps jus t  to  re f resh eve ryone ’s  

memory.   You have –  i f  you  cou ld  p lease go to  Transnet  

Bund le  4 ,  Exh ib i t  BB-19.    

MR SINGH :    Jus t  g ive  me one second.   My  f i les . . .  

[Speaker  moves away f rom microphone –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you need some ass i s tance  there ,  

Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  i f  someone . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay someone w i l l  come and ass i s t  

you.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  may I  jus t . . .    

[Speaker  moves away f rom microphone –  unc lear ]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  i t  i s  in  the  f i les . . .  

MR SINGH :    Sor ry,  s i r.   You are  a t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    On page –  so  you need to  go  to  the  

tab  tha t  say  BB-19.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then i f  you cou ld  tu rn  t o  page 45 

o f  BB-19?  20 

MR SINGH :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th is  i s  Mr  Ester (s i c )  –  Bes ter ’s ,  I  

beg your  pardon,  a f f idav i t .   And th is  i s  the  meet ing  tha t  the  

DCJ was ask ing  you about .   I  jus t  want  to  re f lec t  on  i t .  

“Upon my ar r i va l  a t  Me l rose Arch ,  as  I  wa lked 
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towards the  res tau rant ,  I  was  met  by  a 

gent leman who in t roduced h imse l f  as  Mr  Sa l im 

Essa.  

He sa id  tha t  he  was there  to  meet  w i th  us  as  

par t  o f  the  d iscuss ion  w i th  S ingh  and needed 

to  see i f  the  res taurant  i s  c lean.  

I  asked h im where  S ingh was and he sa id  tha t  

he  w i l l  come h im when he is  ready.  

I  asked Essa whether  he  h imse l f  works  fo r  

Transnet  and he responded tha t  he  is  do ing  a  10 

lo t  o f  th ings or  someth ing  to  the  e f fec t  tha t  I  

have a  lo t  o f  bus inesses.  

He c lea r ly  had no in ten t ion  o f  answer ing  my  

quest ion  in  de ta i l .  

I  was surpr i sed a t  the  t ime tha t  as  soon as  

Essa ca l led  S ingh,  S ingh ar r i ved a  few minutes  

la te r. . . ”  

 Th is  i s  the  meet ing  tha t  you den ied ,  i s  tha t  so?  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you s tand then by  your  tes t imony  20 

tha t  you on ly  eve r  met  Mr  Essa tw ice  in  the  c i rcumstances  

tha t  I  have descr ibed and you have  conf i rmed? 

MR SINGH :    That  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.   Sor ry,  jus t  a  po in t  o f  

c la r i f i ca t ion  Mr  Cha i r.   Do you –  or  Mr  Myburgh ,  do  you 

want  us  to  go  in to  the  de ta i l  as  to  why th is  meet ing  is  
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den ied  because we d id  no t  rea l l y  f in ish  i t  now? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  you  have a l ready dea l t  w i th  

tha t  bu t  i t  i s  my in ten t ion  to  come back to  MMP to  f in ish  o f f  

tha t  la te r.   Now . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   In  tha t  event ,  we must  jus t  make  

sure  tha t  he  ge ts  the  chance to  substant ia te  h is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   Mr  S ingh,  pe rhaps you cou ld  

jus t  dea l  w i th  tha t  now so  i t  w i l l  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Ja ,  maybe –  ja ,  to  g ive  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    On ly  fo r  the  sake o f  comple teness Mr  Cha i r,  

we can.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    Because th is  i s  obv ious l y  one o f  the  more  

content ious issues in  Mr  Bester ’s  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  when I  s ta r ted  the  las t  t ime in  te rms  

o f  p rov id ing  feedback and contex t  in  te rms o f  th is  meet ing  

Mr  Cha i r.   As  I  sa id ,  I  deny these meet ings and I  was go ing  20 

in to  the  de ta i l s  as  to  why I  deny th is  meet ing .   And i t  has  

i t s  nexus in  the  paragraphs tha t  p recede tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    And I  th ink  i t  i s  pa rag raphs 54 and  55,  i f  I  

reca l l  Mr  Cha i r.   I t  has  been somet ime in  te rms o f  be ing  
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ab le  to  have dea l t  w i th  these mat te rs .   But  I  th ink  the  issue 

is ,  and I  have dea l t  w i th  th is  in  my a f f idav i t ,  in  my 

respond ing  a f f idav i t  Mr  Cha i r.  

 I f  you  look a t  pa ragraph 55.   Now you w i l l  reca l l  

Mr  Cha i r,  the  nexus o f  th is  en t i re  p rocess was a  company 

ca l led  DEC and Mr  Reddy and how the  DEC and Mr Reddy 

was t ry ing  to  use the i r  in f luences to  engage w i th  

Mr  Bester ’s  company to  be  ab le  to  become a  subcont rac tor  

to  them.  

 And I  th ink  tha t  Mr  Beste r  had tes t i f ied  to  the  10 

fac t  tha t  i t  was,  you know,  they  were  unsc rupu lous or  

underhanded mechan ics  tha t  were  happen ing  a t  the  t ime.   

So notw i ths tand ing  tha t  tes t imony tha t  Mr  Beste r  had g iven 

pr io r  to  tha t  –  th i s  Mr  Cha i r,  he  s t i l l  seeks ou t  Mr  Reddy to  

engage w i th  myse l f  th rough pu rpo r ted l y  reso lve  some 

unpa id  invo i ces  in  te rms o f  the  pro jec t  tha t  they had 

under taken a t  the  t ime.  

 And Mr  Cha i r,  a t  tha t  t ime,  Hatch  was invo lved 

in ,  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  the  new mul t i -p roduct  p ipe l ine  

pro jec t  and th i s  i s  the  p ipe l ine  p ro jec t  and Mr  Bester  i s ,  20 

obv ious ly,  f rom the  Ra i l road D iv i s ion  o f  Hatch .   So 

Mr  Cha i r,  in  tha t  then –  aga in ,  I  am not  unders tand ing  how 

Mr  Beste r  ge ts  invo l ved in  Ra i l  –  I  mean in  p ipe l ine  re la ted  

invo i ces when he  is  a  Ra i l  -  D i rec tor  o f  Ra i l  in  the  Hatch  

env i ronment ,  bu t  anyway.    
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 He then goes on to  say tha t :  

“A t  the  t ime Cra ig  Sumpt ion ,  CFO of  

In f ras t ruc ture  D iv is ion  o f  Hatch ,  now the  CEO 

of  Hatch  A f r i ca ,  sent  numerous emai ls  to  S ingh 

request ing  a  meet ing  to  d iscuss the  

ou ts tand ing  invo i ces w i thout  success. . . ”  

 Mr  Cha i r,  then he does not  a t tach  any o f  these 

emai ls .   I  do  no t  have any reco l lec t ion  o f  these emai ls  in  

te rms o f  a  reques t  fo r  d iscuss ions f rom Mr  S immer.  

“There  he  to ld  me tha t  i t  was poss ib le  fo r  h im 10 

to  a r range a  meet ing  as  he  had  very  c lose  

re la t ionsh ips  w i th  S ingh and tha t  he  w i l l  

a r range the  meet ing .    

Pursuant  to  my request  to  Reddy,  he  ca l led  me 

and to ld  me tha t  S ingh wou ld  meet  me – wou ld  

meet  us  bu t  ou ts ide  Transnet  o f f i ces  a t  a  

res taurant  a t  Me l rose Arch .    

The meet ing  was  conf i rmed and Cra ig  S immer  

f rom Hatch  In f ras t ruc ture  D iv is ion  and  

Sumpt ion  accompanied me to  the  meet ing . . . ”  20 

 Mr  Cha i r,  what  i s  pecu l ia r  about  t h is  meet ing  i s  

tha t  Mr  Bester  does not  a t tached  any o f  these inv i tes  o f  – 

to  Mr  S immer  or  to  Mr  Sumpt ion ,  ye t  i f  you  reca l l ,  

p rev ious l y  he  had a  ve ry  good record  o f  ac tua l l y  p rov id ing  

us  meet ing  requests  p rev ious ly  in  h is  tes t imony.    
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 Ne i ther  does he supp ly  us  w i th  the  conf i rmatory  

a f f idav i t s  o f  Sumpt ion  or  S immer  in  te rms o f  tha t .   And 

aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  pecu l ia r l y,  the  da te  o f  the  meet ing ,  ne i the r  

S immer  nor  Sumpt ion  ar r i ve .   So i t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  repeat  tha t ,  p lease?  

MR SINGH :    I  sa id  cur ious ly,  on  the  da te  o f  the  meet ing ,  

ne i the r  Sumpt ion  nor  S immer  ar r i ve  a t  the  meet ing .   So i t  

i s  jus t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [00 :16 :34]  tha t  tu rns  up  -  tha t  a r r i ves  

to  purpo r ted l y  meet  w i th  the  CFO of  Transnet  to  d iscuss 

invo i ces tha t  a re  ou ts tand ing  on wh ich  he  has no  10 

background.  

 So i f  I  had to  –  i f  i t  was not  a  leg i t imate  meet ing  

where  he  was prepared to  come and d i scuss  these  

invo ices,  Mr  Cha i r,  he  was go ing  to  d iscuss invo i ces o f  

wh ich  he  had no  unders tand ing  o r  background.   And I  am 

say ing ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  h igh ly  i r regu lar  fo r  a  person  –  we l l ,  

in  an  organ isa t ion  such as  Hatch  to  engage w i th  the  CFO,  

Group CFO of  an  organ isa t ion  l i ke  Transnet  and sent  

ind iv idua ls  tha t  ac tua l l y  have no  background in  te rms o f  

the  top ic  tha t  i s  go ing  to  be  d i scussed.  20 

 Second ly,  Mr  Cha i r.   What  i s  cu r ious is  tha t :  

“Upon my a r r i va l  a t  the  res tauran t  a t  Me l rose 

Arch . . .  [wh ich  is  paragraph 57,  Mr  Cha i r,  on  

page 045]  . . . I  wa lked towards the  res taurant .    

I  was met  by  a  gent leman who in t roduced 
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h imse l f  as  Mr  Essa. . . ”    

 Now aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  am not  too  sure  how 

e i ther  Mr  Beste r  o r  Mr  Essa recogn ises each o ther  because  

a t  th is  t ime Mr  Reddy is  no t  there ,  ne i ther  am I  there  bu t  

they recogn ise  each o ther  somehow and then obv ious ly  the  

d iscuss ion  . . . [ in tervenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  i s  c lear  f rom tha t  sentence tha t  

Mr  Beste r,  a t  leas t  i t  seems to  me,  i s  meet ing  somebody  

tha t  he  d id  no t  know befo re .   I  ge t  the  impress ion  tha t  

Mr  Essa on Mr  Bester ’s  vers ion  wa lked to  h im and  10 

in t roduced h imse l f .   Obv ious ly,  he  cou ld  on l y  do  tha t  i f  he 

thought  he  was the  person he expected to  meet  there .  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  tha t  i s  the  po in t  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  he  had been to ld  how he looks l i ke  or  

someth ing  l i ke  tha t .  

MR SINGH :    And tha t  i s  what  I  am say ing .   [ Ind is t inc t ]  

[00 :18 :41]  by  someone tha t  I  d id  no t  know,  I  wou ld  

probab ly  ask :   How do you know who I  am?  I  th ink .   Which  

Mr  Beste r  fa i l s  to  exp la in .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  20 

MR SINGH :    And Mr  Cha i r,  las t l y.   In  te rms o f  these  

issues.   I  deny tha t  I  was a t  th is  meet ing .   I  a lso  deny the  

fac t  tha t  Mr  Essa ca l led  me.   And I  a r r i ved a t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You den ied  tha t  Mr  Essa. . .?  
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MR SINGH :    That  Mr  Essa ca l led .   Because i t  says  here ,  

in  the  las t  sentence o f  pa ragraph 57.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

“ I  was surpr i sed  a t  the  t ime tha t  as  soon as  

Essa ca l led ,  S ingh ar r i ved a  few minutes  

la te r. . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    I  have not  a r r i ved –  I  have not  rece ived any 

ca l l s  f rom Mr  Essa,  Mr  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Yes.   Wel l ,  in  paragraph  58,  he  

says tha t  the  meet ing  cent red  around payments  f rom 

Transnet  to  Hatch  fo r  work  tha t  had been per fo rmed on the  

MMP and Hatch  was supposed to  have been pa id  w i th in  45-

days a f te r  submi t t ing  invo ices to  Transnet  bu t  he  says the  

meet ing  was super f i c i a l  because  you d id  no t  o f fe r  any  

ins igh t  in to  the  reasons fo r  the  l a te  payments  o f  sys tem 

communica t ion  tha t  cou ld  po tent ia l l y  improve the  

payments .  

 And he says he  thought  you were  p robab ly  20 

d isappo in ted  w i th  the  meet ing .   He had a  d is t inc t  

impress ion  tha t  you had hoped tha t  the  d iscuss ion  were  

go ing  cent re  around Hatch  work ing  w i th  Reddy and h is  

g roup,  ra the r,  and to  reso lve  Hatch  issues o f  ou ts tand ing  

payments .  
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 He sa id  th roughout  the  meet ing ,  he  go t  the  

impress ion  tha t  Essa was the  boss and you were  h is  

subord ina te .    

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  deny the  en t i re  contents  o f  th is  

parag raph.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   D id  you know Mr  Hatch  a t  a l l  wh i le  

you were  a t  Transnet?   Sor ry.   No ,  no  Mr  Beste r.   D id  you  

know Mr  Bester  a t  a l l  when you –  wh i le  –  when you  were  a t  

Transnet?  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r.   To  the  best  o f  my reco l lec t ion  I  10 

do  not  th ink  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So,  bu t  you  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    O ther  than . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Th i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Le t  me qua l i f y  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    Because la te r  on  in  h is  a f f idav i t ,  he  does  

ment ion  –  I  cannot  reca l l  i f  i t  i s  la te r  on  o r  i t  has  a l ready 

preceded Mr  Cha i r,  bu t  he  does ment ion  tha t  there  were  – 

there  was a  meet ing  tha t  happened  a t  Transnet  o f f i ces .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  you were  supposed to  a t tend,  

acco rd ing  to  h im.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  was an ear l ie r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .wa lk ing  up  and  down the  passage.  

MR SINGH :    Yes.   But  th is  was an ear l ie r  meet ing .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  tha t  i s  an  ea r l ie r  one.  

MR SINGH :    Bu t  I  th ink  there  is  another  one tha t  comes  

la te r  on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    Where  I  th ink  d id  a t tend tha t  meet ing  and  

Mr  Beste r  was pa r t  o f  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    So ,  i f  any th ing ,  Mr  Cha i r.   I  wou ld  p robab ly  

have met  h im a t  tha t  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  10 

MR SINGH :    And I  th ink  then there  was –  there  was a  

cockta i l  func t ion  or  someth ing  thereaf te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    And  maybe  he was  there  and maybe I  met  h im 

there .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    So ,  bu t  p r io r  to  tha t  Mr  Cha i r,  I  wou ld  f ind  i t  

d i f f i cu l t  to  unders tand when I  wou ld  have engaged w i th  

Mr  Beste r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  on ,  as  I  unders tand i t  and you must  20 

te l l  me i f  I  m isunders tand you.   On your  vers ion ,  Mr  Henk  

Beste r  jus t  fabr ica ted  th i s  who le  i dea o f  th is  meet ing  and  

tha t  he  had a  meet ing  w i th  you and Mr  Sa l im Essa? 

MR SINGH :    So  Mr  Cha i r,  on  the  ava i lab le  fac ts  i t  i s  

c lea r ly  a  fab r ica t ion .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   And why  do you th ink  he  wou ld  

want  to  fa lse ly  and de l ibera te ly  pu t  you in  a  meet ing  tha t  

you d id  no t  a t tend?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  the  mot ives  o f  these th ings,  I  wou ld  

no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   But  the  two o f  you never  had any  

issues?  

MR SINGH :    No,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.   Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  10 

take  you to  a  few o the r  paragraphs because there  was  

another  meet ing  tha t  Mr  Bester  had w i th  Mr  Essa and tha t  

you see a t  parag raph 59 a t  page 46.  

“Soon a f te r  th is  meet ing ,  I  rece ived a  ca l l . . . ”  

 But  perhaps before  I  lose  my t ra in  o f  thought .   

Can I  ask  you th is?   Do I  unders tand you know to  say -  o r  

perhaps I  cou ld  pu t  i t  d i f fe ren t ly.   D id  you ever  rece ive  

te lephone ca l l s  o r  make te lephone  ca l l s  to  Mr  Essa  wh i ls t  

you were  a t  Transnet?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Not  a  s ing le  one?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r  no t  tha t  I  reca l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Even around the  two meet ings tha t  

you had?  

MR SINGH :    Which  two meet ings?   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    The two meet ings tha t  you have to ld  

us  about .  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You d id  have te lephone ca l l s  a round 

those meet ings?  

MR SINGH :    No,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  you had not  –  you p laced not  a  

s ing le  ca l l  to  Mr  Essa a t  your  t ime a t  Transnet  and he 

p laced not  a  s ing le  ca l l  to  you?  

MR SINGH :    Not  to  my reco l lec t ion .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  me put  th is  p ropos i t ion .   Coming –  

go ing  back to  my quest ion  to  you about  th is  meet ing .   What  

wou ld  you say to  the  propos i t ion  or  a  p ropos i t ion  a long 

these l ines  tha t  on  your  own ve rs ion  Mr  Henk Bester  had  

no reason to  fabr ica te  a  s to ry  l i ke  th is  aga ins t  you but  

maybe you migh t  have a  reason  to deny tha t  a  such a  

meet ing  took p lace even i f  i t  d id  take  p lace because i t  

m igh t  assoc ia te  you w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa who has  lo ts  o f  

a l legat ions o f  cor rup t ion  aga ins t  h im.   What  wou ld  you say 20 

to  such a  propos i t ion?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  –  aga in ,  I  wou ld  no t  want  to  

specu la te ,  r igh t .   So the  propos i t ion  tha t  you put ,  I  wou ld  

no t  want  to  look  a t  i t  in  the  te rm o f  specu la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  
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MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  ra ther  take  you back to  what  I  wou ld  

be l ieve  as  to  be  the  ob jec t i ve  fac ts  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    . . . re la t ing  to  Mr  Beste r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  look a t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    And those are  the  ones tha t  you have 

ar t i cu la ted .  

MR SINGH :    No,  no  I  w i l l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You want  to  c la r i f y  i t?   10 

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

MR SINGH :    So  i f  you  look a t  the  en t i re  submiss ion  o f  

Mr  Beste r.   Mr  Beste r  engages in  th is  –  f i rs t l y,  he  engages 

w i th  the  issue o f  Reddy and DEC and then engages w i th  

Ms S t rydom and –  what  i s  the  gen t leman’s  name?  S t rydom 

and Basson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR SINGH :    R igh t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR SINGH :    In  the  issues re la t ing  to  DEC and a  

subcont rac to r.   Now,  S t rydom,  Basson and Beste r  a re  fu l l y  

aware  tha t  they a re  no t  supposed to  be  do ing  th is  ye t  they 

cont inued do ing  i t .   Okay?  I t  then comes to  a  po in t  where  
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he  conc ludes tha t  Reddy i s  a  less  than honourab le  

gent leman.   On h is  ve rs ion .    

 He,  nonethe less ,  then s t i l l  seeks  our  Reddy ’s  

he lp  to  reso lve  th is  a l leged impasse re la t ing  to  the 

invo i ces tha t  he  wants  reso lved.   And co inc identa l l y,  then 

there  is  a  meet ing  w i th  Essa tha t  has happened  

notw i ths tand ing  the  fac t  tha t  he  then has th is ,  le t  us  say,  

meet ing / in te rac t ion  w i th  Essa.    

 I  th ink  then Mr  Myburgh was go ing  to  lead to  the  

next  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Bester  and Mr  Essa tha t  exc luded me.   10 

Aga in ,  I  am not  too  su re  whether  i t  was ar ranged by  Reddy  

or  no t  bu t  aga in  he  s t i l l  p roceeds w i th  the  meet ing  w i th  

Mr  Essa.   Aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r,  you then move on.   Now you 

have the  ex tens ion  to  the  f i rs t  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  [00 :26:55]  tha t  

was issued.  

 Now you have MMP 2,  le t  us  ca l l  i t  tha t .   And 

aga in ,  Mr  Cha i r  there  is  an  issue o f  subcont rac tors  tha t  

comes up,  r igh t?   We s t i l l  ma in ta in  tha t  we requ i re  a  h igh-

leve l  o f  empowerment  in  the  tender.   They unders tand tha t  

tha t  i s  a  requ i rement  and they bas i ca l l y  know tha t  they  20 

need to  comply  w i th ,  aga in  os tens ib le ,  because  o f  the  

h is to ry,  le t  us  ca l l  i t ,  Phase 1 .    

 They then s t i l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  no tw i ths tand ing  the  

fac t  they have a l ready unders tood the  issues w i th  DEC,  

unders tood the  po tent ia l  re la t ionsh ip  tha t  DEC may have  
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w i th  Mr  Essa.   Unders tand ing  the  issues tha t  Mr  Essa 

a l leged ly  has o f  h is  own.   They have –  Hatch  themse lves  

s i t s  down and have a  meet ing  as  to  whether  they can then 

accept  DEC as a  subcont rac tor  on  Phase 2  and eventua l l y  

accept  Hatch  as  –  accepts  DEC as  a  subcont rac to r.    

 Now,  Mr  Cha i r  when you take  a l l  o f  th is  in to  

account ,  i t  w i l l  p robab ly  be  look ing  –  i t  wou ld  p robab ly  

seem to  me a  more  p laus ib le  ou tcome fo r  Mr  Beste r  to  be  

exp la in ing  why Hatch  was engag ing  in  th is  behav iou r  ra ther  

than me and in  a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Thank you.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.   Now jus t  

inc identa l l y.   The  a f f idav i t  does read tha t  Mr  S immer  and 

Sumpt ion  accompanied Mr  Beste r  to  th is  meet ing .   That  

you w i l l  see  a t  pa rag raph 56.  

MR SINGH :    Oh,  tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.   Sor ry,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   And in  fac t ,  Mr  Bester  tes t i f ied  

to  tha t .   So Mr  S ingh,  what  we do know is  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH :    Bu t  i t  does not  re t rac t  f rom the  fac t  tha t  we 20 

do not  have conf i rmatory  a f f idav i t s ,  on ly  one o f  them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Fa i r  enough.   What  we do know,  

Mr  S ingh,  tha t  th is  i s  a  ve ry  impor tan t  a l legat ion  made 

aga ins t  you.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    You d id  no t  app ly  to  c ross-examine 

Mr  Beste r.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    In  fac t ,  you app l ied  –  you have not  

app l ied  to  c ross-examine anyone.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  see .   Now le t  us  go  to  the  next  

meet ing  tha t  Mr  Essa had w i th  Mr  Beste r.   A t  paragraph 59,  

a t  page 46:  

“Soon a f te r  th is  meet ing ,  I  rece ived a  ca l l  f rom 10 

Reddy in fo rming me tha t  Essa requested a  fo l low-up 

meet ing  w i th  me in  Mel rose Arch .  

I  in fo rmed Cra ig  Sumpt ion  o f  the  ca l l  and the  

meet ing  da te  as  se t .  

Unfo r tunate ly,  I  cannot  remember  the  da te  o f  the  

meet ing .  

The meet ing  was he ld  a t  JB ’s  Corner  a t  Me l rose  

Arch  and in  a t tendance was Essa,  Reddy and me. . . ”  

Le t  me take you to  parag raph 61:  

“ I t  was a  b izar re  meet ing .   I t  appeared to  me tha t  20 

Essa was a  regu lar  in  the  res tau rant  as  everyone  

seemed to  recogn ise  h im.  

He,  Essa,  a l lowed ca r ry ing  [word  cu t ]  w i th  h im and  

dur ing  the  meet ing  he  rece ived  numerous ca l l s  

wh ich  in te r rup ted  ou r  conversa t ion  as  he  
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con t inuous ly  to  take  ca l l s .   I  became very  annoyed 

w i th  th is  behav iour. ”  

Paragraph 62:  

“Essa to ld  me tha t  Hatch  must  inc lude h is  company 

(whose name he d id  no t  ment ion  a t  the  t ime)  in  our  

phase 2  tender  submiss ion .   I  to ld  h im tha t  we had 

a l ready f ina l i sed our  g roup inc lud ing  our  SD 

par tners  and tha t  there  was no way o f  now inc lud ing  

h is  company in  the  submiss ion . ”  

Paragraph 63:  10 

“He ins is ted  tha t  we shou ld  inc lude h i s  company 

and sa id  tha t  they have a  lo t  o f  power.   Hav ing  

regard  to  my prev ious unders tood  they to  be  Essa  

and S ingh but  I  cou ld  a lso  have inc luded o ther  

ind iv idua ls  w i th in  and outs ide  Transnet  tha t  cou ld  

a lso .   Essa ment ioned tha t  “ they” ,  Essa and S ingh,  

wou ld  increase the  cont rac t  va lue  a f te r  award  and 

tha t  we shou ld  inc lude about  80  m i l l ion .   I  cannot  

remember  the  exact  va lue  bu t  i t  was an enormous  

f igure  as  an  in i t ia l  va lue .   He fu r ther  ind ica ted  tha t  20 

the  80  mi l l ion  w i l l  increase to  someth ing  r id icu lous  

in  the  order  o f  350 mi l l ion  or  beyond.   He sa id  tha t  

the  cont rac t  va lue  ( fo r  in  phase 2)  wou ld  eventua l l y  

increase the  over  2  b i l l i on .   I f  I  remember  cor rec t l y  

a t  the  t ime our  submiss ion  fo r  ra i l  was va lued a t  
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app rox imate l y  800 mi l l ion . ”  

Now what  I  want  to  ask  you,  i s  a re  you ab le  to  d ispute  – do  

you have any knowledge o f  th is  second meet ing  tha t  Bester  

he ld  w i th  Essa?  

MR SINGH :    No,  S i r,  I  d id  no t  know.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    And you see here  tha t  Mr  Essa was  

rea l l y  t r y ing  to  musc le  in  on  Hatch  was he not ,  as  an  SD 

par tne r.  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  appear  so .  

CHAIRPERSON :    For  what  i t  i s  wor th ,  I  jus t  ment ion  tha t  10 

when Mr  Bester  makes the  a l legat ion  tha t  Mr  Essa sa id  the  

cont rac t  va lue  eventua l l y  inc reased to  ove r  R2 b i l l i on ,  i t  is  

d i f f i cu l t  to  read tha t  w i thout  th ink ing  about  the  t ra ins  wh ich  

–  where  the  va lue  inc reased d ras t ica l l y.   That  c rosses my 

mind,  tha t  i s  a l l  I  am say ing .  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  maybe i f  pu t  your  m ind a t  ease,  Mr  

Cha i r,  the  cont rac t  was not  awarded fo r  2  b i l l i on .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  no ,  I  am no t  g iv ing  any f igures  bu t  I  

know there  was –  there  are  t ransact ions where  the  va lues  

increased in  a  manner  tha t  i s  very  unusua l .   Yes,  Mr  20 

Myburgh?  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.   Then pe rhaps wh i ls t  

we are  on  th is  a f f idav i t  le t  me take you to  parag raph 75 

because you are  cor rec t ,  Mr  S ingh ,  you d id  –  there  was a  

t ime when you met  Mr  Beste r  and there  i s  re fe rence in  th is  
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a f f idav i t  to  I  th ink  i t  i s  a  cockta i l  par ty.   That  you  f ind  a t  

page 51,  paragraph 75.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe before  you proceed,  Mr  Myburgh.   

Mr  S ingh,  i f  th is  meet ing  wh ich  you sa id  you know noth ing  

about  takes p lace,  the  cha l lenge w i th  your  ve rs ion  is  tha t  

Mr  Bester  say  i n  e f fec t  i t  was a  f o l low up on the  prev ious 

meet ing  wh ich  you say is  a  fabr i ca t ion?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  so  I  am jus t  ment ion ing  tha t  there  

is  tha t  cha l lenge.  10 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  see the  cha l lenge,  Mr  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  the  cha l lenge is  th is .   I f  Mr  Bester  

i s  co r rec t  tha t  th is  was a  fo l low up  meet ing  then the re  must  

have been an ear l ie r  meet ing  then the  ear l ie r  meet ing  

wou ld  on ly  the  one he is  ta lk ing  about .  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  i f  you  say i t  was –  i f  i t  was not  a  

fo l low up,  i t  was a  s tanda lone mee t ing ,  tha t  i s  d i f fe ren t .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  le t  us  pu t  the  ear l ie r  20 

meet ing  in to  con tex t .   When I  say  I  deny the  meet ing ,  I  

deny tha t  I  a t tended the  meet ing .   I  wou ld  no t  be  in  a  

pos i t ion  to  deny tha t  the  meet ing  ac tua l l y  happened 

between Mr  Bester  and Mr  Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So you deny tha t  you were  par t  o f  
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the  meet ing .  

MR SINGH :    Par t  o f  the  meet ing  on  the  bas is  o f  what  I  

have suggested.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   You do not  deny tha t  there  may  

have been a  meet ing  invo lv ing  them wi thout  you.  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  I  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  do  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  a l r i gh t .   But  then i f  tha t  was  

the  case then Mr  Beste r  must  rea l l y  have been s ing l ing  you  

out  to  jus t  fa lse ly  pu t  you in  tha t  meet ing  in  a  very  s t range  

way because a  meet ing  took p lace and you wou ld  have  10 

known who were  in  tha t  meet ing  bu t  he  br ings you in  

knowing tha t  you  were  no t  in  tha t  meet ing .   That  wou ld  be  

the  imp l ica t ion .  

MR SINGH :    Wel l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  in  my las t  response to  

your  p ropos i t ion  I  ou t l ined poss ib i l i t y  as  to  why Mr  Bester  

i s  tak ing  the  approach tha t  he  is  tak ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR SINGH :    In  o rder  to  mot iva te  why they ac tua l l y  ended  

up tak ing  BEC as Hatch  as  a  subcont rac tor  where  they 

pa tent ly  knew tha t  i t  was prob lemat ic  o r  there  were  a l leged 20 

issues w i th  BEC and the  a l leged re la t ionsh ip  tha t  ex i s ted  

w i th  Mr  Essa and Mr  Essa h imse l f  in  te rms  o f  the 

a l legat ions aga ins t  Mr  Essa.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  thank you.   And a t  parag raph 75,  
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page 51:  

“A f te r  negot ia t ions  bu t  be fo re  the  pro jec t  k icked o f f  

in  ear l y  2015 the  sen ior  peop le  o f  the  H2N JV 06.31  

were  inv i ted  to  a  meet ing  w i th  Senack(?)  Peter  i n  

Car l ton  Cent re .   In  a t tendance o f  on  beha l f  o f  the  

H2N JV were  me,  A l igasen Na idu ,  CEO Mot t  

MacDona ld  and  Dempsey Na idoo,  CEO of  Mo t t  

MacDona ld  and an execut ive  o f  Orecon.   A t  th is  

meet ing  S ingh to ld  us  tha t  we were  very  lucky  to  

have been awarded th i s  cont rac t  and  he  w i l l  watch  10 

us  very  c lose ly.   A l l  d i rec tors  v iewed S ingh ’s  

comments  as  very  negat ive  and cou ld  no t  

unders tand why he was aga ins t  our  appo in tment .   I t  

may have been because we d id  no t  inc lude Essa in  

our  b id .   A f te r  th is  meet ing  the  H2N JV hosted a  

smal l  ce leb ra to ry  funct ion  and  inv i ted  sen io r  

rep resenta t i ves  o f  Transnet  such as  S ingh,  Peter,  

Skhosana and Mr  Mohammed Mahomedy.   Dur ing  

h is  speech S ingh made negat ive  comments  abou t  

the  H2N JV and cr i t i c i sed ou r  team before  the  20 

pro jec t  had even commenced. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  yes .   I  my a f f idav i t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  go  

to  some exten t  in  te rms o f  t ry ing  to  ou t l ine  the  contex t  

beh ind  th is  meet ing .   I f  I  take  you  back to  the  tes t imony I  
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led  be fore  the  Commiss ion ,  Mr  Cha i r,  you w i l l  remember  

tha t  I  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  a re  you ta l k ing  about  an  

a f f idav i t  where  you a re  respond ing  to  Mr  Bester ’s  a f f idav i t  

tha t  we are  look ing  a t  now? 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  i s  i t  in  the  bund le ,  Mr…? 

MR MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  w i l l  f ind  i t  wh i l s t  Mr  S ingh i s  

[ ind is t inc t  –  d ropp ing  vo ice ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  10 

MR SINGH :    Thank you,  Mr  Myburgh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Cont inue?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms –  le t  me take you back to  

when we ac tua l l y  s ta r ted  the  MEP phase 1 .   MEP is  

manganese expans ion  pro jec t  wh ich  is  th is  en t i re  a f f idav i t  

o f  Mr  Bester.   I  d id  say,  Mr  Cha i r,  a t  tha t  t ime i t  was a  

re la t i ve ly  la rge  p ro jec t .   I  th ink  i t  was p robab ly  one  o f  the  

top  f i ve  pro jec ts  in  te rms o f  by  s ize  in  the  cap i ta l  

expend i tu re  prog ramme o f  300 b i l l i on  wh ich  I  in t roduced  

yesterday.  20 

 Mr  Cha i r,  a  p ro jec t  o f  th is  s ize  and magn i tude does  

and w i l l  car ry  an  inord ina te  amount  o f  r i sk ,  an  execut ion  

r i sk  re la t ing  to  –  f rom t ime o f  incept ion  to  t ime o f  

comple t ion  and Mr  Cha i r,  one o f  the  reasons tha t  we as 

Transnet  a t  the  t ime were  focus ing  par t i cu la r l y  on  le t  us 
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ca l l  i t  cap i ta l  expend i tu re  and cap i ta l  expend i tu re  r i sks  was  

because o f  the  sheer  s ize  o f  the  cap i ta l  expend i tu re  

programme was 300 b i l l i on .    

As  I  exp la ined yesterday,  Mr  Cha i r,  the  MDS was a  

counter -cyc l i ca l  investment  s t ra tegy so  i t  means we were  

ac tua l l y  invest ing  aga ins t  the  demand wh ich  increased the  

r i sk  qu i te  s ign i f i can t ly  fo r  the  o rgan isa t ion  so  you needed  

to  have a  hand le  on  r i sks ,  a  rea l  hand le  on  r i sk .   So g iven 

the  fac t  tha t  we had h is to ry,  Mr  Cha i r,  o f  over runs on  

prev ious locomot ive  pu rchases on the  NMPP i t se l f ,  the 10 

Durban dug-out  por t ,  the  Transne t  en t rance w ide  –  so r ry,  

no t  Durban dug-out  por t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  th ink  the  pro jec t  was  

ca l led  the  Durban ent rance ha rbour  w iden ing  pro jec t  and 

g iven the  fac t  tha t  we are  now embark ing  on  th is  300 

b i l l i on  prog ramme,  one o f  the  s takeho lders  tha t  were  rea l l y  

keen on unders tand ing  how we were  go ing  to  manage the  

programme f rom a  r i sk  perspect ive  was the  c red i t  ra t ing  

issue.  

The next  s takeho lders  tha t  wou ld  be  in te res ted  in  

unders tand ing  how we were  go ing  to  manage th i s  20 

s ign i f i can t  [ ind is t inct  – dropping voice]  was potent ia l l y  

investors  tha t  were  go ing  to  fund Transnet .  

Now we needed to  demonst ra te  f i rs t l y  tha t  we had  

learn t  –  o r  we had lea rn t  ou r  lessons f rom the  past  and  

what  were  we go ing  to  do  d i f fe ren t ly  in  the  fu tu re .   That  
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wou ld  be  one way to  demonst ra te  th rough [ ind is t inc t ]  11 .01  

as  we l l  as  po tent ia l  investors  tha t  okay,  we know what  we  

are  do ing .  

And one o f  the  b iggest  i ssues tha t  we encountered  

on the  NMPP pro jec t  o r  the  new mul t i  p roduct  p ipe l ine  

pro jec t ,  Mr  Cha i r,  and I  th ink  I  cover  i t  in  one  o f  my 

a f f idav i t s  bu t  the  pro jec t  ac tua l l y  increased f rom I  th ink  i t  

was 9  b i l l i on  to  -  and I  th ink  cur ren t ly  i t  i s  s i t t ing  a t  about  

30  b i l l i on ,  i f  I  am not  m is taken or  35  b i l l i on  in  te rms o f  

comple t ion ,  i s  tha t  the  EPCM cont rac tor  i s  v i ta l  and the  10 

manner  in  wh ich  you engage the  EPCM cont rac to r,  the  way  

you engage w i th  the  EPCM cont rac tor,  the  manner  i n  wh ich  

you manage the  EPCM is  c r i t i ca l  to  one,  successfu l  

imp lementa t ion  o f  the  pro jec t  and  when we say successfu l  

imp lementa t ion  o f  the  pro jec t  we  are  ta l k ing  pro jec t  on  

t ime,  w i th in  budget  and w i th in  schedu le .  

Now the  reason  why EPCM cont rac tors  a re  so  

cr i t i ca l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  because they become an ex tens ion  o f  

the  organ isa t ion .   So Transnet  does not  –  o r  Eskom does  

not  have the  pe rsonne l  who ac tua l l y  s i t  on  the  pro jec t  on  a  20 

day- to -day bas is  to  manage i t ,  so  we ac tua l l y  ou tsource  

tha t  to  what  we  ca l l  the  EPCM pro jec t  o r  the  EPCM 

consu l tan t .  

Now Hatch ,  Mr  Cha i r,  was one o f  those consu l tan ts .   

So we are  bas i ca l l y  tak ing  an  MEP pro jec t ,  we are  hand ing  
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i t  over  to  Hatch  and we are  say ing  Hatch ,  imp lement  th is  

p ro jec t  on  ou r  beha l f  and you have a  budget  o f  whatever  i t  

i s ,  le t  us  10  mi l l ion .   So bas ica l l y  we are  hand ing  10  

mi l l ion  over  the  Hatch ,  r igh t?    

So the  contex t  o f  th is  meet ing ,  Mr  Cha i r,  was the re  

was –  in  my v iew there  was noth ing  un toward  about  i t ,  th is  

meet ing  was bas ica l l y  a  meet ing  to  say guys,  we have 

dea l t  w i th  EPCM cont rac tors  in  the  past ,  we have burn t  ou r  

f ingers  s ign i f i can t ly  and we have  a  l i ve  example  in  the  

NMPP.   We want  do  th ings d i f fe ren t ly  on  th is  p ro jec t ,  we 10 

want  th is  p ro jec t  to  be  a  success  and we want  i t  to  be  on  

t ime,  w i th in  budget  and schedu le  and tha t  i s  what  you r  

ac tua l  funct ion  is .   And tha t  was  the  contex t  beh ind  th is  

meet ing .   There  was noth ing  un toward  about  i t ,  i t  wou ld  –  

th is  meet ing  was ,  as  I  sa id ,  se t  up  to  ou t l ine  Transnet ’s  

expecta t ion  v is -à-v i s  our  EPCM cont rac tor  tha t  was  

appo in ted .  

A lso ,  Mr  Cha i r,  jus t  to  h igh l igh t ,  in  te rms o f  -  to  

p rov ide  contex t  in  te rms o f  the  award ,  Hatch  cou ld  have  

been awarded,  any o ther  company cou ld  have  been 20 

awarded and th is  comment  o f  whoever  was awarded wou ld  

have had the  same meet ing  because the  under l y ing  bas is  

fo r  the  meet ing  was to  ou t l ine  our  expecta t ions.  

So even i t  was any o ther  –  i f  i t  Orecon tha t  was 

appo in ted ,  they wou ld  have a lso  been sa id  you were  lucky  
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to  ge t  th is  because our  expecta t ion  is  no t  to  serv i ce  us  as  

you serv iced us  in  the  past ,  i t  i s  comple te ly  d i f fe ren t .   And,  

Mr  Cha i r,  in  my –  I  ac tua l l y  p layed  no ro le  in  award ing  th is ,  

so  whether  i t  was  Hatch ,  whether  i t  was Orecon,  whether  i t  

was any o f  the  o ther  eng ineer ing  compan ies  tha t  was 

awarded,  i t  was a  product  o f  the  process and the  

eva lua t ion  process is  conducted by  the  eva lua t ion  team.  

So,  Mr  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  the  contex t  beh ind  th i s  meet ing  

and as  I  sa id  i t  was rea l l y  a  meet ing  where  we  rea l l y  

wanted to  ou t l ine  what  Transnet ’s  expecta t ions o f  our  10 

EPCM serv ice  prov iders  was go ing  fo rward .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  tha t  i s  the  contex t  bu t  d id  you 

say these th ings,  tha t  they were  lucky  to  have been  

awarded the  cont rac t  and d id  you make –  were  you  cr i t i ca l  

o f  them? 

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  th ink  I  was c r i t i ca l  o f  them,  

I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  reason why I  spent  an  inord ina te  amount  

o f  t ime exp la in ing  the  contex t  fo r  the  meet ing  and the  

contex t  o f  the  meet ing  was to  ou t l i ne  our  expecta t ions .  20 

MR MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Wel l ,  d id  you say these th ings,  

d id  you say they were  very  lucky?  

MR SINGH :    No.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    DCJ,  you asked fo r  the  re ference to 

the  a f f idav i t .   You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  Mr  S ingh has  f i led  a  
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ser ies  o f  a f f idav i t s ,  f i ve  d i f fe ren t  a f f idav i t s .   He dea ls  w i th  

Mr  Henk Bester  in  h is  f i rs t  a f f idav i t  and tha t  you  f ind  in  

bund le  5B a t  page 445.   I  do  no t  i n tend to  take  you  th rough 

i t ,  I  jus t  s imp ly  b r ing  i t  to  the  a t ten t ion  o f  the  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    From paragraphs 42 onwards.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  jus t  repeat  the  page? 

MR MYBURGH SC :    Page 445 th rough to  page 451 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  these are  th ings tha t  we had gone  10 

th rough,  Mr  S ingh,  be fore .   I  am not  go ing  to  re - t raverse  

tha t .    

What  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  do  then is  to  take  you to  Mr  

Gama’s  ev idence .   I f  I  cou ld  ask  you p lease to  pu l l  ou t  

EXHIBIT BB28.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  I  have found i t  Mr  Myburgh,  I  jus t  

wanted to  know where  i t  i s  because I  m ight  have  to  jus t  

read i t  aga in .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   We go back to  bund le  4?  20 

MR MYBURGH SC :    We are  now in  a  d i f fe ren t  exh ib i t ,  

EXHIBIT BB28,  Mr  Gama’s  exh ib i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    In  wh ich  bund le?  

MR MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  in  a d i f fe ren t  f i l e ,  your  reg is t ra r  

w i l l  g ive  i t  to  you.  



23 APRIL 2021 – DAY 381 
 

Page 59 of 92 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  a  d i f fe ren t  one,  ja .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    And cou ld  you p lease tu rn  up  page  

48?  Are  you there?  

MR SINGH :   Sor ry ,  what  page,  S i r?  

MR MYBURGH SC:    Page 48.  

MR SINGH :    I  am there ,  S i r.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Paragraph 31 .3 .    

“ In  o r  du r ing  Ju ly /August  2015…” 

Says Mr  Gama.  

“…I  needed to  d iscuss a  work- re la ted  i ssue w i th  10 

Ano j  S ingh,  the  then Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i ce r  o f  

Transnet .   S ingh ’s  o f f i ce  was in  c lose  p rox im i ty  to  

m ine and I  wa lked to  h is  o f f i ce  and observed  

( th rough a  c lea r  g lass  par t i t ion)  in  boardroom 

together  w i th  S ingh.   I  en tered the  o f f i ce  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Together  w i th  Essa.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry,  I  beg your  pardon,  togethe r  

w i th  Essa.    

“ I  en tered the  o f f i ce  and had a  very  br ie f  d i scuss ion  20 

w i th  S ingh and as  I  le f t  Essa ind i ca ted  to  me tha t  

he  was des i rous  o f  hav ing  a  meet ing  w i th  me.   

Wi thout  g iv ing  much thought  to  the  request ,  I  

responded tha t  he  cou ld  ob ta in  my contac t  de ta i l s  

f rom S ingh. ”  
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Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Yes,  Mr  Cha i r.   Mr  Cha i r,  I  have no 

reco l lec t ion  o f  th is  sa id  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Essa and  ne i ther  

do  I  reca l l  Mr  Gama ever  meet ing  Mr  Essa in  my o f f i ce .   Mr  

Cha i r,  you wou ld  have regard  fo r  the  da te  be ing  

Ju l y /August  2015 .   I f  i t  was August  2015,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  can  

te l l  you  the  meet ing  never  happened because I  was a t  

Eskom at  the  t ime,  then tha t  on ly  l eaves Ju ly  2015.  

 Mr  Cha i r,  in  te rms o f  Ju ly  2015,  i f  the  meet ing  d id  

happen and on Mr  Gama’s  vers ion ,  Mr  Cha i r,  my  o f f i ce  i s  10 

const ruc ted  in  such way tha t  my o f f i ce  i s  le t  us  say here  

and then there  is  an  a t r ium and my PA s i t s  in  the  a t r ium 

and then the re  a re  two –  the re  is  two add i t ions  ind i v idua ls  

tha t  s i t  in  an  o f f i ce  tha t  i s  ad jo ined to  the  a t r ium.   So you 

have my o f f i ce  here ,  you have the  a t r ium and then there  

are  two add i t iona l  o f f i ces  bu t  they are  a l l  par t  o f  one 

o f f i ce ,  okay?  

 So,  Mr  Cha i r,  i f  th is  meet ing  d id  indeed happen,  i t  

w i l l  be  very  easy  fo r  e i ther  Ms Thakhane,  who was  my PA 

a t  the  t ime,  to  conf i rm whethe r  Mr  Essa was indeed in  my  20 

o f f i ce  or  Mr  Yusu f  Mahomed,  who wou ld  be  s i t t ing  in  tha t  

add i t iona l  o f f i ce  or  Mr  Norman Mabaso,  who a lso  occup ied  

tha t  o f f i ce  to  conf i rm tha t  th is  ac tua l l y  happened  wh ich  I  

ca tegor i ca l l y  deny.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  so  tha t  I  unders tand your  
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ev idence,  when  you say  you have no knowledge or  

reco l lec t ion ,  you are  no t  say ing  you cannot  remember,  you 

are  say ing  th is  d id  no t  happen,  you ca tegor i ca l l y  deny tha t  

i t  happened.  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    So  Mr  Gama a lso  jus t  ge ts  i t  a l l  

wrong?  

MR SINGH :    We l l ,  Mr  Cha i r,  respect fu l l y,  I  th ink  when Mr  

Gama comes he can exp la in .   We l l ,  he  has a l ready come,  

bu t  …[ in tervenes]  10 

MR MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  he  has a l ready come.  

MR SINGH :    Yes  bu t  in  my v iew,  Mr  Cha i r,  I  am te l l ing  you 

th is  meet ing  d id  no t  happened.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    You d id  no t  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Mr  Myburgh ,  cont inue?  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Ja ,  sor ry,  you a lso  d id  no t  app ly  to  

c ross-examine Mr  Gama.   

MR SINGH :    No,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :   So  you say tha t  he  is  a lso  jus t  fabr ica t ing  

th is  s to ry  o f  hav ing  seen you hav ing  a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  20 

Essa in  your  o f f i ce .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t ,  S i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And are  you ab le  to  o f fe r  any reason 

why Mr  Gama wou ld  want  to  fa lse l y  imp l ica te  you in  a  

meet ing  w i th  Mr  Sa l im Essa in  your  o f f i ce?  
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MR SINGH :    I  have no reason,  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Yes,  okay.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    So  a t  th is  t ime Mr  Gama was the  

Act ing  GEC of  Transnet .  

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    And you were  h is  CFO? 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Now Mr  Gama’s  ve rs ion  o r  ev idence 

about  the  fac t  tha t  Mr  Essa sa id  I  am des i rous o f  meet ing  

w i th  you and w i thout  g i v ing  much  thought ,  as  he  sa id ,  you  10 

responded and sa id  he  cou ld  ob ta in  my contac t  de ta i l s  

f rom S ingh.   That  you knew to  be  Mr  Essa ’s  modus 

operand i ,  d id  you not?   He was des i rous o f  meet ing  you,  

he  sought  you ou t  and he had mee t ings w i th  you,  co r rec t?  

MR SINGH :    There  is  two,  yes .   One or  two,  yes .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    So  tha t  i s  how Mr  Essa opera ted?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  no t  know,  S i r.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    No but  I  am ask ing  you,  i s  tha t  no t  

exact ly  what  he  d id  in  re la t ion  to  you,  he  knew 

…[ in tervenes]  20 

MR SINGH :    As  i t  re la tes  to  …[ in tervenes]  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Jus t  i f  you  bear  w i th  me?  He knew 

you to  be  a  h igh- rank ing  o f f i c ia l  a t  Transnet ,  seems he  

sought  you out ,  he  sought  to  make contac t  w i th  you and 

meet  w i th  you.   He d id  tha t ,  d id  he  no t?  
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MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    And he then does the  same wi th  Mr  

Gama because o f  course  now Mr  Gama is  a  very  h igh-

rank ing  o f f i c ia l ,  he  is  ac t ing  as  the  GCE o f  Transnet ,  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH :    I  wou ld  hazard  to  say tha t  Mr  Gama was a  

h igh - rank ing  o f f i c ia l  o f  Transnet  fo r  a  very  long t ime,  o ther  

than when he was a  GCE,  he  was  a lso  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  

o f  Transnet  Fre igh t  Ra i l  fo r  a  very  long t ime.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    But  th is  i s  Mr  Essa ’s  modus operand i ,  10 

is  i t  no t ,  to  t ry  and make contac t  –  c lose  contac t  w i th  h igh-

rank ing  o f f i c ia ls .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  I  wanted –  or  I  le f t  

my learned f r iend to  pursue th is  po in t  bu t  I  rea l l y  have to  

ob jec t  a t  th is  po in t  in  t ime.   When  you put  a  p roposa l  l i ke  

th is  to  a  w i tness  you must  have a  fac tua l  bas is  on  wh ich  

you put  the  proposa l  and …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  te l l  me what  p ropos i t ion?  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    That  th is  i s  h is  modus operand i .   

The way tha t  my learned f r iend is  pu t t ing  i t  to  Mr  S ingh,  he  20 

is  ask ing  h im to  comment  on  a  fac tua l  s ta tement  tha t  my  

learned f r iend i s  mak ing  and I  am submi t t ing  to  you there  

is  no t  a  bas is  fo r  h im making  such a  fac tua l  s ta tement  

un less  he  can d i rec t  me where  in  the  bund les  he  has go t  i t  

under  oa th  and  I  w i l l  then ask  fo rg iveness fo r  hav ing  
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m issed i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh?  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  the  fac tua l  bas is  i s  what  

happened w i th  Mr  S ingh and I  thought  I  had made tha t  

c lea r.   Perhaps I  can re- t raverse  tha t  g round.   Mr  S ingh… 

MR SINGH :    Yes,  S i r.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  your  own ev idence,  as  I  

unders tand,  you must  cor rec t  me i f  I  am wrong,  tha t  you 

had two meet ings w i th  Mr  Essa.   He contac ted  you.   Your  

ev idence is  no t  tha t  you contac ted  h im so  on two occas ions  10 

when you were  Ch ie f  F inanc ia l  Off i cer  he  makes  contac t  

w i th  you.   He asks fo r  meet ings w i th  you and dur ing  those 

meet ings he ,  I  th ink  you sa id ,  exp lored potent ia l  bus iness  

oppor tun i t ies .   So I  am s imply  pu t t ing  to  you  tha t  Mr  

Gama’s  ve rs ion  o f  what  Mr  Essa sa id  to  h im accords w i th  

your  in te rac t ion  w i th  Mr  Essa.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rpe rson,  I  aga in  ob jec t .   

That  i s  no t  so .   Look a t  what  i s  s ta ted  by  Mr  Gama.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  Ms van den Heever,  I  am go ing  to  

add to  what  Mr  Myburgh says abou t  Mr  Sa l im Essa ’s  modus  20 

operand i ,  I  am go ing  to  add someth ing  tha t  i s  no t  in  the  

Transnet  work  s t ream because  I  happened to  hear  

ev idence re la t ing  to  d i f fe ren t  work  s t reams,  i t  i s  someth ing  

tha t  happened in  the  Dene l  work  s t ream,  Mr  Essa  

…[ in tervenes]  
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ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Cha i rperson,  I  jus t  m issed  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Essa sought  ou t  the  CEO of  the 

Dene l ,  Mr  Sa loo jee  and ca l led  h im to  a  meet ing  a t  the  

Gupta  house and  on the  ev idence  tha t  has been led  here ,  

sought  to  have Mr  Sa loo jee  agree to  some bus inesses  

invo l v ing  Dene l  and ent i t ies  tha t  Mr  Sa l im Essa was  

connected w i th .  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.   Of  

course ,  we have no knowledge o f  tha t ,  so… 10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  okay.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :    So  my ob jec t ion  was based on a 

proposa l  tha t  was put  tha t  was nowhere  to  be  found in  our  

bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no ,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   Okay.  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  fas t  fo rward .   

What  then happened,  I  do  no t  assume you can d i spute  th is ,  

i s  tha t  Mr  Essa then d id  inv i te  Mr  Gama to  a  meet ing .   Can  

you d ispute  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  have no knowledge o f  th is  sa id  20 

meet ing .   

MR MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Gama’s  vers ion  is  tha t  tha t  inv i te  

a rose f rom the  in te rac t ion  in  your  o f f i ce .  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  tes t i f ied  to  the  fac t  tha t  th is  

meet ing  in  my o f f i ce  never  happened.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  ac tua l l y,  now tha t  Mr  Myburgh has  

asked tha t  quest ion ,  I  wanted to  say to  you when I  asked 

you a  quest ion  about  whether  Mr  –  you were  say ing  Mr  

Gama was fabr ica t ing  a l l  o f  th is  about  th is  meet ing ,  I  was  

under  the  wrong impress ion  tha t  he  saw you s i t t ing  w i th  Mr  

Sa l im Essa on h is  vers ion  wh i le  he  was pass ing ,  bu t  I  see  

tha t  he  ac tua l l y  says he  d id  en te r  your  o f f i ce .  

MR SINGH :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Which  means he had a  p roper  oppor tun i ty   

to  see who you were  w i th  on  h is  ve rs ion .  10 

MR SINGH :    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :   So  as  opposed to  maybe jus t  pass ing  and  

see ing  ins ide  your  o f f i ce  th rough  a  w indow o r  g lass  or  

someth ing .   So he says he  d id  en ter,  so  wh ich  means tha t  

i t  i s  un l i ke ly  he  wou ld  be  mis taken about  i f  he  saw you w i th  

somebody tha t  m ight  no t  have been Sa l im Essa,  i f  he  was 

jus t  pass ing  and saw th rough a  w indow.   But  he re  he  says  

he  entered so  i f  h is  vers ion  is  t rue  he  had enough 

oppor tun i ty  to  see who the  pe rson was tha t  you were  

hav ing  a  meet ing  w i th .   A l r igh t ,  I  unders tand tha t  you say  20 

no such meet ing  took p lace,  I  jus t  wanted to  c la r i f y  

because ea r l ie r  on  I  was under  the  impress ion  tha t  he  d id  

no t  en ter  your  o f f i ce  bu t  i t  i s  c lear  f rom h i s  vers ion  tha t  he  

says he  d id  en ter.   But  you say no th ing  o f  tha t  sor t  

happened.  
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MR SINGH :    No,  S i r.   Sor ry,  I  am say ing  yes,  no th ing  o f  

tha t  sor t  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON :   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  

MR MYBURGH SC :    Yes and then go ing  back  to  the 

inv i ta t ion ,  Mr  Essa does inv i te  h im to  a  meet ing ,  p robab ly  

seen Mr  Gama,  he  ge ts  the  address and as  th ings tu rn  ou t  

i t  i s  the  Saxonwo ld  compound o f  the  Guptas .   The meet ing  

takes p lace the re .   I  do  no t  suppose you can d ispute  tha t?  

MR SINGH :    Mr  Cha i r,  I  have no persona l  knowledge o f  

th is  meet ing ,  I  am not  sure  how I  can d ispute  i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    P lease jus t  repeat  you r  answer,  i t  was 

so f t .  

MR SINGH :    I  sa id  I  have no pe rsona l  knowledge  o f  th is  

meet ing ,  so  Mr  Myburgh wants  me to  d ispute  th is  meet ing .  

MR MYBURGH SC :    No… [ record ing /sess ion  ends –  

cont inues w i th  Sess ion  3 ]  

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t ’s  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you .   Mr  S ingh cou ld  I  jus t  

ask  you p lease to  go  to  page 1716 o f  Bund le  5C.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I ’m  sor ry  1?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1716.  

MR SINGH:    I ’m  there  s i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  you there ,  a l r i gh t ,  I  jus t  wanted 

to  conf i rm wi th  re ference to  the  shad ing ,  I  th ink  you ’ve  
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g iven ev idence p rev ious ly  tha t  –  and you must  cor rec t  me 

i f  I  am wrong,  tha t  when you were  seconded to  Eskom you  

were  s t i l l  pa id  fo r  a  t ime by  Transnet ,  i s  my reco l lec t ion  

cor rec t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you want  to  keep your  mask on  

or  i s  i t  by  m is take?  

MR SINGH:    Thank you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  a t  i tem 38 on the  le f t  hand s ide  

there  we see in  shad ing  your  Ju l y  sa la ry,  Transnet ,  then 10 

you were  a t  Transnet?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then we see a  Transnet  sa la ry  in  

August  and September,  bu t  in  those months  you had been 

seconded to  Eskom.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then you a lso  see in  October  i t  

seems what  happened i s  tha t  you were  then pa id  ou t  

Transnet  LTI ’s ,  I  take  i t  tha t ’s  l ong te rm incent ives  on  a 

propor t ionate  bas is .  20 

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And you were  a l so  then pa id  some 

leave.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Which  then  takes us  to  the  ba lance 
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tha t  we had spoken about  be fore .   DCJ I  need to  po in t  ou t  

to  you tha t  there  are  some co r rec t ions tha t  need to  be  

made a t  page 1718.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You w i l l  see  tha t  i f  you  look  a t  1717  

r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom,  number  57 ,  there  a  schedu le  i s  dea l ing 

w i th  February  2017,  when you go to  1718 and you p ick  up  

a t  March i t  re f lec ts  March 2016,  so  those years  in  tha t  

co lumn shou ld  ac tua l l y  be  17 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC   And then the  o ther  co r rec t i on  tha t  

needs to  be  made is  tha t  when you get  r igh t  to  the  bo t tom,  

and i t  re fe rs  to  Transfe r  Money Market  tha t  f i rs t  account  

there  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  I  jus t  want  to  make sure  tha t  

I  cor rec t  th is .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   DCJ I  have asked Mr  Ben jamin  to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    To  prepare  a  supp lementary  or  

rep lacement  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    He w i l l  p repare  a  supp lementa ry  

a f f idav i t  and there  w i l l  be  a  rep lacement  page.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  no  tha t ’s  f ine .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   None o f  th is  i s  par t i cu la r ly  mater ia l  

fo r  p resent  purposes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then under  the  head ing  t ransfer  

money account  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    On . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1718 a t  the  bo t tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The f i rs t  o f  those accounts  there  

ends 398 tha t  ac tua l l y  i s  an  incor rec t  account  number,  i t  

shou ld  be  an account  number  end ing  607.  

CHAIRPERSON:    607?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  and those fours  tha t  you see  

under  the  head ing  t ransfer  money  account  i t  jus t  needs to  

be  c la r i f ied  tha t  tha t  i s  ac tua l l y  the  4 t h  o f  December.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  shou ld  be  4 /7 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  what  we have here  rea l l y  in  

summary Mr  S ingh is  tha t  in  th ree  years  or  th ree  months  o r  

so  we see an accumula t ion  o f  about  R19mi l l ion  in  sa la ry  –  

le t  me ca l l  i t  remunera t ion ,  i t  i s  no t  jus t  sa la ry  i t  i s  a lso 20 

incent ives  and the  l i ke  and we see out f lows o f  jus t  o f  

R700 000,  tha t ’s  a l l  in  those th ree  years  and th ree  months ,  

so  the  quest ion  tha t  I  jus t  want  to  d iscuss w i th  you  is  how 

is  tha t  you were  fund ing  your  day to  day expenses and  

your  l i fes ty le  du r ing  these th ree  years ,  th ree  years  and  
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th ree  months?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  a t  th is  po in t  Mr  Cha i r  the 

d iscuss ions tha t  we had w i th  the  Cha i rperson yesterday as  

we l l  as  Mr  Myburgh and the  invest iga t ion  team obv ious ly  

we have now unders tood tha t  the  team and the  Commiss ion  

has access to  a  number  o f  my bank s ta tements ,  no t  on ly  

th is  bank s ta tement ,  and Mr  Cha i r  i t  i s  concern ing  fo r  me 

to  be  requested to  answer  th is  quest ion ,  g iven the  fac t  tha t  

you have access  to  these o the r  bank s ta tements ,  because 

these o ther  bank  s ta tements  wou ld  re f lec t  the  fac t  tha t  my 10 

l i fes ty le  was funded f rom those  bank s ta tements ,  as  I  

tes t i f ied  yesterday.    

 The deb i t  o rde rs ,  c red i t  ca rds ,  g rocer ies ,  e lec t r i c i t y,  

wate r,  a l l  my normal  expenses wou ld  have come o f f  those  

accounts .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  tha t  I  unders tand,  bu t  how d id  

you pay fo r  them?   Because on the  face  you weren ’ t  us ing  

your  sa la ry  –  your  remunera t ion ,  le t  me use tha t  lauded 

te rm,  tha t  i s  rea l l y  the  quest ion  I  am ask ing  you.   I  mean  

obv ious ly  you must  have l i ke  everyone had accounts  and 20 

deb i t  o rders  and the  l i ke .   The quest ion  rea l l y  goes to  how 

were  you fund ing  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:    In  o ther  words  what  was the  source  o f  

the  money you used to  incorpo ra te  those o ther  accounts  

f rom which  you were  fund ing  your  l i v ing  expenses and the  
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l i ke .  

MR SINGH:  Wel l  aga in  Mr  Cha i r  i t  i s  aga in  concern ing  tha t  

hav ing  ana lysed  th is  account  in  de ta i l  tha t  you have,  

hav ing  access to  the  bank s ta tements  tha t  we know you  

have tha t  the  Commiss ion  doesn ’ t  have an answer  to  tha t  

quest ion  and aga in  Mr  Cha i r  the  answer  to  tha t  quest ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Does tha t  mean you are  no t  go ing  to  

g ive  the  answer  o r  what?  

MR SINGH:    No Mr  Cha i r,  i t  goes to  the  po in t  o f  the  fac t  10 

tha t  the  Commiss ion  has these documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:   You have conducted an ana lys i s  o f  th is  

account  the  bank  s ta tements  tha t  you have ind i ca tes  tha t  

as  I  sa id  to  you  the  l i fes ty le  was funded th rough those  

bank accounts .    Those bank accounts  a lso  re f lec t  sa la ry  

payments ,  long- te rm incent ives  f rom funds there ,  and th is  

i s  why I  am say ing  i t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  are  you say ing  your  remunera t ion  

f rom Transnet  d idn ’ t  come th rough one account  i t  went  20 

th rough i t  went  in to  d i f fe ren t  bank accounts ,  a re  you  say ing  

tha t  the  remunera t ion  f rom Transnet  tha t  we see re f lec ted  

in  th is  bank account  over  tha t  per iod  doesn ’ t  g ive  the  t rue  

p ic tu re  o f  the  money you were  ge t t ing  f rom Transnet?     

MR SINGH:    No Mr  Cha i r  I  have been employed by  
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Transnet  fo r  over  ten  years .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:   Or 12 I  th ink ,  12  years  by  the  t ime I  le f t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:   So fo r  the  per iod  f rom the  t ime I  ac tua l l y  I  

th ink  came to  Johannesburg  in  2003 my sa lary  f rom 

Transnet  were  go ing  in to  a  bank  account ,  so  tha t ’s  the  

source  o f  the  funds tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    And so  the  funds tha t  you  say you used 

to  f inance you l i v ing  expenses and  your  l i fes ty le  dur ing  the  10 

th ree  years  tha t  we a re  ta lk ing  about ,  you say tha t  came 

f rom your  remunera t ion  f rom Transnet  bu t  no t  f rom the  

remunera t ion  dur ing  those th ree  years  bu t  f rom pr io r  yea rs .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t  s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay so  does tha t  mean in  the  years  

pr io r  to  these th ree  years  you d idn ’ t  –  you had enough to  

spend dur ing  those years  and have a  lo t  o f  reserves and 

sav ings o r  what?  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r,  I  mean i f  you  look a t  

th is  bank s ta tement  i t se l f  Mr  Cha i r  i t  i s  tes tament  to  the 20 

fac t  tha t  I  had a  sav ing  cu l tu re ,  so  s im i la r ly  Mr  Cha i r  the  

Commiss ion  had  the  oppor tun i ty  to  ana lyse  the  bank  

s ta tements  tha t  a re  in  the i r  possess ion  fo r  a  per iod  o f  

t ime,  you wou ld  have come to  a  very  qu ick  conc lus ion  tha t  

the  money tha t  was in  those accounts  emanated f rom 
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Transnet ,  Transnet  a lone.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  in  shor t  genera l l y  speak ing  the  

money tha t  went  in to  those o the r  accounts  tha t  you are 

ta lk ing  about  was a lso  money f rom Transnet ,  i t  was your  

remunera t ion  i t  i s  jus t  tha t  you saved a  lo t  o f  money  dur ing  

those years  and  you were  ab le  dur ing  these th ree  years  

when you d idn ’ t  touch the  sa la ry  tha t  came in  dur ing  those 

th ree  years ,  you were  ab le  to  use whatever  money you had  

accumula ted  over  those p r io r  yea rs?  

MR SINGH:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  in  shor t  you drew f rom your  

sav ings?  

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  s i r?  

ADV MYBURGH SC    You d rew f rom your  sav ings in  these 

years?  

MR SINGH:    In  these years  in  quest ion?   

ADV MYBURGH SC    Yes.  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC    A l r igh t ,  and  jus t  so  tha t  you –  tha t  I  20 

unders tand i t  you say a l l  o f  these o ther  accounts  w i l l  

re f lec t  on ly  depos i ts  o f  remunera t ion  f rom Transnet ,  no  

o ther  income? 

MR SINGH:    We l l  Mr  Cha i r  you know you ’ re  ta lk ing  about  

accounts  tha t  go  back qu i te  a  few  years ,  I  am not  exact ly  
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sure  i f  there  are  c red i ts  tha t  emanate  f rom o ther  sources,  

bu t  ce r ta in l y  the  major i t y  o f  the  cred i ts  tha t  wou ld  emanate  

f rom those accounts  wou ld  cer ta in ly  be  f rom my 

employment  accounts .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  you are  say ing  you can ’ t  be  su re  

whethe r  i f  somebody were  to  go  th rough the  whatever  

mon ies  came in ,  in to  those accounts ,  you can ’ t  be  sure  

tha t  there  won ’ t  be  money tha t  came f rom somewhere  e l se  

o ther  than Transnet ,  here  and there  bu t  ma in ly  i t  was  

Transnet  and i t  was the re  anyth ing  tha t  came f rom 10 

somewhere  e lse  i t  m igh t  be  a  very  smal l  percentage? 

MR SINGH:   Mr Cha i r  maybe le t  me answer  to  you th is  

way.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR SINGH:   I  th ink  w i th  the  exactness o f  my responses 

tha t  the  Commiss ion  requ i res  i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  fo r  me to  

ca tegor i ca l l y  s ta te  tha t  every th ing  s ing le  c red i t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  yes ,  ja .  

MR SINGH:   In  a l l  o f  my bank s ta tements  emanated f rom 20 

remunera t ion  f rom Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

MR SINGH:  But  what  I  can say to  you Mr  Cha i r  i s  tha t  as  

you sa id  the  major i t y  o f  tha t  i f  no t  99% of  them probab ly  

emanated f rom Transnet .   There  wou ld  have been  some I  
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wou ld  assume SARS cred i ts ,  some SARS re funds,  some 

medica l  a id  re funds i f  I  reca l l ,  p robab ly  in te res t  and a l so  

Mr  Cha i r  i t  depends on the  type o f  account  i t  wou ld  have 

been.   I f  i t  was a  –  how can I  ca l l  i t ,  i f  i t  was Money  Market  

account  o r  an  investment  account  there  wou ld  have been 

you know d i v idends or  someth ing  tha t  accrued re la t ing  to  

the  type o f  investment .  

 So Mr  Cha i r  bu t  aga in  as  I  sa id  the  ana lys is  was 

done on th i s  account ,  so  the  ana lys i s  to  be  done  on the  

o ther  accounts  w i l l  be  jus t  as  easy.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   

ADV MYBURGH SC :   That ’s  no t ,  i t  i s  no t  qu i te  as  s imp le  as  

you say because we have been  asked as  you know to  

produce the  summonses in  re la t ion  to  your  bank account  

records  and in  the  process o f  t ry ing  to  pu t  tha t  toge ther  we 

have come to  learn  tha t  you had many,  many bank  

accounts ,  I  mean  do I  unders tand  cor rec t l y  tha t  you might  

have had as  many as  12  FNB accounts?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  I  am not  too  su re  the  per iod  over  

wh ich  th is  i s ,  bu t  aga in  depend ing  on whether  you had a  20 

cred i t  card  or  a  deb i t  ca rd  o r  a  sav ings accoun ts  or  a  

garage card  or  a  money market  account  o r  an  I  don ’ t  know,  

le t ’s  ca l l  i t ,  I  don ’ t  know what  o ther  accounts  they wou ld  

have had,  i f  they  a l loca ted  d i f fe ren t  account  numbers  t o  i t  

then ja  you wou ld  have had more  than one  account  
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number.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  then you a lso  had  mul t ip le  

accounts  a t  Investec ,  mu l t ip le  accounts  a t  Cap i tec ,  

mu l t ip le  accounts  a t  S tandard  Bank and mul t ip le  accounts  

a t  ABSA.  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  aga in  as  I  have ment ioned  i f  you  

have a  ga rage ca rd  w i th  ABSA i t  i s  an  account ,  i f  you  have  

a  F i rs t  Card  w i th  ABSA i t  i s  an  account ,  i f  you  have a  deb i t  

card  i t  wou ld  have a  cer ta in  account ,  so  i t  seems tha t  tha t  

i s  how the  banks opera te ,  so  i f  I  had those accounts  then I  10 

had those accoun ts .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:       And so  as  I  unders tand what  you 

are  say ing  is  tha t  the  Commiss ion  can to  and ana lyse  a l l  o f  

those accounts  and then work  ou t  how you were  fund ing  

your  l i v ing  expenses but  wh ich  o f  these accounts  d id  you 

ac tua l l y  use  as  a  cur ren t  account ,  because you  weren ’ t  

us ing  th is  as  a  cur ren t  account .   Which  o f  your  bank 

accounts  d id  you  use as  a  funct ion ing  day to  day cur ren t  

account ,  deb i t  o rders  fo r  med ica l  a id ,  bonds,  wha tever  i t  

i s?  20 

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  tha t  wou ld  e i ther  be  the  –  we l l  i t  

wou ld  be  the  ABSA account  and i t  wou ld  a l so  be  the  

S tandard  Bank.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  i s  the  las t  one?  

MR SINGH:   The  S tandard  Bank.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The ABSA and S tandard  Bank  

cur ren t  accounts .  

MR SINGH:    Ja .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR SINGH:    The predominant  c red i t  card  tha t  I  used Mr  

Cha i r  was p robab ly  the  Investec  one.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sor ry?  

MR SINGH:    I  sa id  the  predominant  c red i t  card  tha t  I  

u t i l i sed  was the  Investec  one.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    The Investec  account  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  mean when you say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH:    Sor ry?  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Investec  account?  

MR SINGH:   The cred i t  card .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Cred i t  card ,  Investec  cred i t  ca rd ,  tha t  i s  

the  one you predominant ly  used?  

MR SINGH:    I f  I  cou ld  reca l l  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    Le t  me take th is  chance  to  jus t  

conf i rm someth ing .   The payments  tha t  you wou ld  have  20 

made to  Trave l  Exce l lence fo r  you r  t r ips ,  do  you remember  

when you were  g i v ing  ev idence under  the  Exco Eskom work  

s t ream,  you sa id  somet imes you pa id  by  cash,  somet imes I  

th ink  EFT and somet imes you used ebucks bu t  wh ich  o f  the  

accounts  wou ld  you have normal ly  used fo r  those payments  
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and fo r  t r ips?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  I  wou ldn ’ t  reca l l  o f fhand r igh t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You wou ldn ’ t  reca l l ,  bu t  i f  you  were  

predominant ly  us ing  the  Investec  Cred i t  Card  there  m ight  

be  a  good chance  tha t  maybe tha t  i s  where  one cou ld  look,  

you remember  we sa id  we need to  look  a t  the  bank 

s ta tements  and bank record  and see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  recent ly  I  wou ld  reca l l  tha t  I  used 

the  Investec  cred i t  card .  

CHAIRPERSON:    The Investec  cred i t  card .  10 

MR SINGH:   Cred i t  card ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  a l r igh t .     

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You say recent ly?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :   Bu t  we ’ re  ta lk ing  about  2014.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes,  yes .   I  thought  you sa id  you  

recent ly  reca l led  tha t  you wou ld  have used i t .   

MR SINGH:    No,  no  s i r  the  pe r iod  tha t  I  haven ’ t  gone in to  

t ry ing  to  f ind  records  because as  I  sa id  we don ’ t  have 

access to  those records.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  2014/2015.    Okay,  bu t  i f  one cou ld  

look a t  you r  Investec  Cred i t  Card  and look a t  the  ABSA 

account  and FNB,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the  we  can f ind  the  payments  to  

Trave l  Exce l lence .  
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MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  as  I  sa id  I  don ’ t  reca l l  how and  

when these payments  were  made,  bu t  I  wou ld  reca l l  tha t  I  

p robab ly  d id  some in te rnet  payments  and some c red i t  card  

payments  bu t  they were  p redominant ly  case.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    They were  predominant ly  cash?  

MR SINGH:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  you say they were  predominant ly  

case the  payments?  

MR SINGH   Based on our  tes t imony we had g iven 10 

prev ious l y  yes s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay,  so  there  wou ld  have been few 

EFT payments?  

MR SINGH:  I f  I  reca l l  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay so  most  were  cash?  

MR SINGH:   Yes s i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  had not  unders tood your  

ev idence l i ke  tha t  be fore ,  so  most  were  cash and there  

m ight  have been a  few tha t  were  EFT.  

MR SINGH:   Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    And those tha t  were  EFT wou ld  e i ther  be  

ABSA or  Investec  account .  

MR SINGH:   Probab ly  Mr  Cha i r  bu t  I  cannot  conf i rm .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see Mr  S ingh my reco l lec t ion  o f  
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your  ev idence when Mr  Se leka was quest ion ing  you in  

re la t ion  to  those  payments  tha t  your  ev idence was the  

o ther  way round,  tha t  you sa id  look occas iona l l y  you wou ld  

pay in  cash but  you exp la ined tha t  you wou ld  use a  var ie ty  

o f  d i f fe ren t  means.   Can we take i t  now tha t  you ’ re  se t t l ing  

on  tha t  usua l l y  you pa id  in  cash?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  I  don ’ t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER :   Cha i rpe rson I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  no t  usua l l y  Mr  Myburgh,  

p redominant ly,  o r  most ly,  most ly,  ja .  10 

MR SINGH:   So what  i s  the  p ropos i t ion  tha t  you a re  

pu t t ing?  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  he  is  ask ing  whether  we can take  i t  

tha t  –  he  says he  unders tood your  ev idence when you were  

be ing  quest ioned  by  Mr  Se leka to  be  tha t  usua l l y  o r  most  

o f  the  t ime the  payments  were  i n  cash but  there  were  

somet imes when  i t  was th rough o ther  means,  bu t  he  is  

say ing  as  he  unders tands you now you a re  say ing  –  he  was  

say ing  usua l l y,  and I  was cor rect ing ,  as  you are  say ing  

most  o f  the  t ime i t  was cash,  tha t  i s  what  you are  say ing ,  20 

tha t  i s  what  you sa id ,  so  he  was want ing  to  conf i rm tha t  he  

unders tands you cor rec t l y.  

MR SINGH:   That  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So predominant ly  cash.   So the  o ther  
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th ing  I  wanted to  ask  you is  th is  i s  as  these bank  

s ta tements  show th is  was not  an  i n te res t  bear ing  account ,  

you d idn ’ t  rece ive  any in te res t?  

MR SINGH:    Yes tha t  i s  cor rec t  Mr  Cha i r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And in  fac t  what  i t  shows  is  tha t  

there  was a  t ime when you t ransfe r red  out ,  th is  i s  in  2016,  

I  th ink  i t  i s  R16mi l l ion  in to  two money market  accounts ,  

tha t  you see i f  you wou ld  l i ke  to  look  a t  page 1717,  l ine  

i tem 15,  you see  there  was a  t ransfe r  o f  one mi l l ion  and 

f i ve  m i l l ion  in to  account  608,  tha t  i s  R6mi l l ion ,  and then 10 

there  was a  t rans fer  o f  one mi l l ion  and n ine  m i l l ion  and ten  

m i l l ion  in to  the  Money Market  account  end ing  in  607,  do  

you see tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And I  can take  you to  those  

s ta tements  bu t  once you made  those t ransfers  on  a  

month l y  bas i s  you were  ge t t ing  a lmost  R100 000 in  

in te res t .  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Why d id  you not  pu t  these p roceeds 20 

or  the  in f low in to  an  in te res t  bear ing  account ,  I  mean th is  

i s  a  huge amoun t  o f  money,  when you d id  tha t  you made  

R100 000 a  month .  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  in  dea l ing  w i th  th is  ques t ion  Mr  

Cha i r  i s  i t  poss ib le  to  jus t  take  a  two minute  recess to  
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consu l t?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  have no ob jec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  we w i l l  take  a  le t ’s  say  f i ve  

m inutes  ad journment .  

MR SINGH:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t ’s  cont inue.   Your  m ic  Mr  10 

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A re  you in  a  pos i t ion  to  answer  my q  

quest ion .   

MR SINGH:    Can  you jus t  repeat  the  quest ion .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The quest ion  was why d idn ’ t  you put  

the  money in to  an  in te res t  bear ing  account?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  a t  the  t ime  I  had persona l  reasons  

to  need –  to  have  access to  these funds.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Why wou ld  tha t  p rec lude you f rom 

put t ing  i t  in  an  in te res t  bear ing  account .   I  can  unders tand 20 

i f  you  say they earned l i t t le  in te res t  because they were  in  

an  account  tha t  pay you l i t t le  in te res t  because  i f  you 

wanted to  ge t  a  h igh  in te res t  ra te  you wou ld  have  had to  

pu t  the  away fo r  a  long t ime w i thout  hav ing  access to  

them,  bu t  I  don ’ t  unders tand when  you use tha t  to  say pu t  
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them where  you wou ldn ’ t  ea rn  any  in te res t  a t  a l l .  

MR SINGH:   Yes Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  when we say tha t  the  

accounts ,  th is  was a  cheque account  i f  I  am not  m is taken 

Mr  Cha i r  and so  the  in te res t  on  th is  account  wou ld  have 

been very  re la t i ve ly  low i f  I  reca l l ,  I  am jus t  t ry ing  to  check 

i f  i t  ac tua l l y  d isc loses in te res t ,  so  Mr  Cha i r  as  I  have  

ind ica ted  there  was a  need fo r  me  to  main ta in  th is  account  

to  have l iqu id i t y  and a t  some po in t  I  was approached by  

the  pr iva te  banker  a t  F i r s t  Nat iona l  Bank who suggested 

tha t  there  i s  p robab ly  a  be t te r  way to  s t i l l  have access to  10 

the  fund ing  and hav ing  l iqu id i t y  and s t i l l  earn  in te res t ,  and 

tha t  i s  the  po in t  in  t ime when I  then agreed to  open up 

these Money Market  account ,  wh ich  then resu l ted  in  the 

earn ing  o f  in te res t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  when you say the  in te res t  ra te  

was re la t i ve l y  low the re  was no in te res t  in  these accounts ,  

un less  you have a  be t te r  sense o f  them than me,  bu t  le t  me  

jus t  take  you –  and you must  co r rec t  me i f  I  am wrong.   

Le t ’s  go  to  the  f i rs t  one,  1580.  20 

MR SINGH:   No,  no  Mr  Cha i r  I  concede because I  have  

looked a t  the  bank s ta tement .   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  wasn ’ t  a  mat te r  o f  be ing  re la t i ve l y  

low,  the  in te res t  was zero .  

MR SINGH:    I  know,  I  have seen tha t .   And I  guess Mr  
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Cha i r  tha t  i s  wha t  p rompted the  p r iva te  banker  a t  FNB to  

suggest  the  open ing  o f  the  Money Market .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  S ingh you were  ch ie f  f inanc ia l  

o f f i cer  o f  Eskom,  o f  Transnet ,  I  beg your  pardon,  and you 

needed a  pr i va te  banker  to  te l l  you  tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Cha i rperson is  tha t  a  quest ion  

or  i s  i t  a  s ta tement ,  o r  what  i s  my  learned f r iend t ry ing  to  

do?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  Mr  Myburgh is  qu i te  en t i t led  to  pu t  

what  he  is  pu t t ing  to  Mr  S ingh,  what  do  you say about  tha t  10 

Mr  S ingh?   But  you –  you are  so  h igh ly  qua l i f ied  in  f inance  

how  cou ld  you have to  wa i t  to  e  adv i sed by  a  pr iva te  

banker  to  pu t  you r  money in to  an  in te res t  bear ing  account .  

MR SINGH:    No Mr  Cha i r  as  I  have sa id  I  needed to 

re ference the  bank account  to  ac tua l l y  see whether  i n te res t  

was ac tua l l y  earned on th is  account  o r  no t  and I  have – i t  

was my impress ion  tha t  i t  was re la t i ve ly  in te res t  tha t  I  was  

earn ing  bu t  in  ac tua l  fac t  I  was ac tua l l y  earn ing  no  

in te res t .   So Mr  Cha i r  wou ld  be  my reason.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  I  am not  sure  tha t  I  unders tand tha t  20 

answer  Mr  S ingh because I  unders tood you ea r l ie r  on  to  be  

say ing  the  reason  why you were  qu i te  content ,  and I  know I  

am us ing  my own words now,  you were  qu i te  content  to  

have such la rge  amounts  to  remain  in  an  account  tha t  

d idn ’ t  g ive  you in te res t  was because you needed to  have 
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access to  these  funds.    Now tha t  i s  an  answer  o f  

somebody who was aware  tha t  he  was not  ge t t ing  in te res t  

in  these accounts ,  bu t  fo r  cer ta in  reasons was – had no 

prob lem wi th  tha t  because o f  whatever  reasons he had,  bu t  

i f  you  had –  i f  you  knew tha t  the  account ,  i f  your  

impress ion  was tha t  the  account  was g iv ing  you  a  low 

in te res t  as  opposed to  zero  in te res t  then when Mr  Myburgh  

sa id  to  you why  d id  you keep such la rge  amoun ts  in  an  

account  tha t  d idn ’ t  g ive  you any in te res t  your  answer  

wasn ’ t  go ing  to  be  tha t  because I  wanted to  have access to  10 

the  money,  you r  answer  wou ld  have been no,  no ,  no ,  these 

accounts  d id  g i ve  me in te res t  bu t  i t  was a  low in te res t ,  bu t  

i t  i s  no t  co r rec t  to  say i t  d id  no t  g ive  me in te res t ,  tha t  

wou ld  have been  you r  answer.    

 What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  I  th ink  your  p ropos i t ion  i s  p roper ly  

we l l  s ta ted ,  I  shou ld  have sa id  i f  I  unders tood tha t  the  

in te res t  was a  re la t i ve ly  l ow in te res t  bear ing  I  shou ld  have  

sa id  my reco l lec t ion  was tha t  the  in te res t  was re la t i ve l y  

low ra ther  than agree ing  to  the  fac t  tha t  there  was no  20 

in te res t  bear ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh perhaps I  can jus t  ask  you  

th is ,  and you are  much bet te r  versed in  th is  than I  am a t  

the  moment ,  bu t  jus t  as  a  typ i ca l  man in  the  s t ree t  rea l l y  
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i sn ’ t  i t  genera l  knowledge tha t  a  cu r ren t  account  wou ld  

bear  much lower  in te res t ,  an  ord ina ry  cu r ren t  accoun t ,  than 

any investment  account ,  than a  Money Market  account?  

MR SINGH:    That  i s  why I  had the  pe rcept ion  tha t  th is  

account  was a  re la t i ve ly  low in te res t  bear ing  account  

compared to  the  Money Market .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  tha t  i s  rea l l y  I  th ink  t he  DCJ 

is  ge t t ing  a t ,  on  your  own vers ion  you thought  i t  was low,  

we sa id  i t  was ze ro ,  you say you d idn ’ t  know tha t  fo r  some 

reason,  bu t  i f  you  knew you were  in  a  cur ren t  account  you 10 

d idn ’ t  need to  know the  in te res t  ra te ,  why d idn ’ t  you move 

the  money in to  a  Money Market  account?  

MR SINGH:    Bu t  tha t  i s  the  reason Mr  Cha i r  I  was  happy 

to  fo rego the  in te res t  tha t  I  though t  I  was ea rn ing ,  wh ich  I  

was not  earn ing  os tens ib ly  now,  because I  needed l iqu id i t y  

regard ing  cash.    So in  my case,  because I  needed l iqu id i t y  

I  was say ing  okay I  am happy to  fo rego the  in te res t  tha t  I  

wou ld  ge t  on  a  more  longer  te rm  investment  v is -a -v is  the  

fac t  tha t  I  needed  the  money,  o r  access to  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am not  sure  I  unders tand why you 20 

wou ld  fo rego l iqu id i t y  i f  you  put  i t  in to  an  ord ina ry  sav ings  

account  fo r  example .  

MR SINGH:    Wel l  Mr  Cha i r  tha t  was the  dec is ion  I  made a t  

the  t ime,  and i t  i s  what  I  d id  a t  the  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  S ingh I  am jus t  go ing  to  ask  you  
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one th ing ,  I  mean d id  you pay less  or  more  a t ten t ion  to  

your  persona l  f inanc ia l  a f fa i r s  than you d id  the  a f f a i rs  o f  

Transnet?  

MR SINGH:    As  I  to ld  Mr  Cha i r  I  ac tua l l y  p robab ly  pa id 

more  a t ten t ion  to  the  a f fa i rs  o f  my pro fess iona l  work  than 

my own.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  see .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  le t  me  ask th is  quest ion ,  as  I  

unders tand your  ev idence you,  and you say you needed  

l iqu id i t y,  tha t  i s  why you kept  these la rge  amoun ts  in  an 10 

account  tha t  d idn ’ t  g ive  you in te res t ,  you mean you  wanted 

to  be  ab le  to  d raw cash f rom i t  o r  use  i t  i f  and when you 

had a  need?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And d id  you th ink  you were  go ing  to  

have a  need fo r  m i l l i ons?  

MR SINGH:    Mr  Cha i r  in  th is  case  as  I  exp la ined –  I  say  in  

th is  case,  as  I  exp la ined or ig ina l l y,  tha t  the  need to  have 

th is  quantum o f  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  was fo r  a  p r iva te  and 

conf ident ia l  reason . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:   Cha i rpe rson i f  we go o f f  l i ne  and  

we go i n  camera  I  am sure  my  c l ien t  w i l l  a t  tha t  s tage  

d isc lose  i t ,  r igh t  now he doesn ’ t  want  to  d isc lose  h is  

p r iva te  bus iness fo r  a l l  and sundry  to  hear.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no t  tha t  i s  f ine .  
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ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    There  is  no th ing  ne far ious or  

s t range about  i t ,  there  i s  a  very  leg i t imate  reason  fo r  i t ,  

bu t  i f  you  ins i s t  we can go i n  camera  and he can te l l  you .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No Ms van den Heever,  no  p lease.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Bu t  what  I  am say ing  

Cha i rperson we  can d i sc lose  i t  to  the  Commiss ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  heard  you.   And Mr  S ingh is  equa l ly  

ab le  to  say exact ly  tha t ,  and I  th ink  in  a  way he had begun  

to  say someth ing ,  okay,  so  you  are  say ing  the re  is  a  10 

reason wh ich  made i t  necessary  f o r  you to  have cash o f  

tha t  s ize ,  o f  m i l l ions  o f  rands,  ready shou ld  you need i t?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  i s  a  reason tha t  you wou ld  

ra the r  d isc lose  not  pub l i ca l l y.  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Myburgh?  I  be l ieve  tha t  Mr  

Myburgh i f  you  want  to  take  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  am  happy fo r  tha t  to  be  done 

pr iva te ly,  you wou ld  be  o f  a  much bet te r  sense DCJ o f  how 20 

we shou ld  go  about  do ing  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Whether  we go o f f l ine ,  whe ther  Mr  

S ingh shou ld  pu t  in  an  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    We a re  in  your  hands.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  th ink  maybe we shou ld  do  tha t ,  he  

shou ld  pu t  tha t  in  an  a f f idav i t  and because I  th ink  we won ’ t  

f in ish  w i th  h im today.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then I  can see tha t  and then  we can 

then take  i t  f rom there .   Okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Per fec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A l r igh t ,  you w i l l  do  tha t  Mr  S ingh?  

MR SINGH:    Tha t  i s  f ine .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  Mr  S ingh I  now want  to  go  

back to  where  I  s ta r ted  br ie f l y  yes terday.    You w i l l  

remember  tha t  I  sa id  to  you . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe jus t  to  make su re  there  is  no  

m isunders tand ing  I  am not  ru l ing  tha t  whatever  in fo rmat ion  

Mr  S ingh w i l l  g ive  in  tha t  a f f idav i t  w i l l  no t  be  d isc losed,  bu t  

I  am s imply  say ing  in i t ia l l y  le t  me have a  look a t  i t  w i thout  

i t  be ing  made pub l i c  then we can take  i t  f rom there ,  okay.  

MR SINGH:    Unders tood Mr  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Thank you DCJ.   So I  sa id  tha t  

be fore  I  dea l  w i th  the  t ransact ion  adv i sors  and appo in tment  

o f  consu l tan ts  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR SINGH:    Sor ry  Mr  Cha i r,  i s  i t  poss ib le  to  ask  fo r  a  
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shor t  recess Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ten minutes?  

MR SINGH:   Tha t  i s  more  than su f f i c ien t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r igh t ,  le t ’s  take  ten  m inutes  

ad journment .  

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  unders tand tha t  counse l  fo r  Mr  S ingh 10 

wou ld  l i ke  to  request  tha t  we ad jou rn  fo r  the  day.  

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    We wanted to  ask  i f  poss ib le  a t  

th is  po in t  to  ad journ ,  we have exp la ined to  Cha i rpe rson in  

chambers  what  i s  the  reason,  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  i s  necessary  

to  pub l i ca l l y  b roadcast  i t ,  I  hope you unders tand the  

reasons and . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  bu t  I  th ink  w i thout  go ing  in to  

de ta i l s ,  i t  i s  re la ted  to  Mr  S ingh ’s  hea l th ,  I  th ink  tha t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV VAN DEN HEEVER:    Pu t  s imp ly.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  my unders tand ing ,  you conf i rm,  

ja .    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We have noth ing  to  add 

Cha i rperson,  we accept  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay,  we a re  go ing  to  then ad journ  
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because o f  hea l th  re la ted  reasons  to  Mr  S ingh and another  

da te  w i l l  be  a r ranged.    I t  i s  jus t  impor tan t  tha t  we say 

someth ing  because the  pub l i c  knows tha t  we don ’ t  have  

t ime so  we cannot  be  seen to  be  no t  us ing  t ime tha t  i s  

ava i lab le  fo r  no  va l id  reason,  so  –  okay we are  go ing  to  

ad journ ,  anothe r  da te  w i l l  be  de termined fo r  Mr  S ingh to  

cont inue w i th  h i s  ev idence,  so  we  w i l l  ad journ  fo r  the  day,  

and fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  on  Monday the  

Commiss ion  w i l l  hea r  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Gama,  S iyabonga 

Gama under  the  Transnet  work  s t ream dur ing  the  day and  10 

in  the  even ing  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  the  even ing  we f i rs t  w i l l  have Mr  

G igaba ’s  app l i ca t ion  in  re la t ion  to  Ms Gigaba ’s  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then obv ious ly  sub jec t  to  what  

you may o r  may  not  ru le  Ms Gigaba might  g i ve  ev idence 

a f te r  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    A f te r  tha t  ja ,  okay,  a l r igh t .   We ad jou rn .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 26 APRIL 2021  20 


